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DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEV ADA 

IN THE MATTER OF THE GUARDIANSHIP 
OF THE PERSON AND EST A TE OF: 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Kathleen June Jones, 

An Adult Protected Person. ) 

Case Number: G-19-052263-A 
Department: B 

INVENTORY, OATH AND VERIFIED RECORD OF VALUE 

Pursuant to NRS 159.085, Robyn Friedman and Donna Simmons, each of whom serve 

as temporary guardians of the person and estate of Kathleen June Jones, hereby submit 

Inventory of the estate of Kathleen June Jones as of the conclusion of their service as guardians 

which is attached hereto as Exhibit 1. 

The Oaths of the temporary guardians of the estate concerning the Inventory as require 

by NRS 159.085(3) are attached hereto as Exhibit 2. 

I II 

Ill 

II I 

Ill 

I II 
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Verified Records of Value in lieu of appraisals concerning the property of the protecte 

person as enumerated in the Inventory are attached as Exhibit 3. See NRS 159.086(2). 

DATED this 4th day of May, 2020. 

- 2 -

MICHAELSON & ASSOCIATES, LTD. 

ti" .p t~ 
P. Michaelson, Esq. 

Nevada Bar No. 7822 
2200 Paseo Verde Parkway, Ste. 160 
Henderson, Nevada 89052 
Counsel for Co-Guardians 
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STATE OF NEV ADA 

COUNTY OF CLARK 

) 
): ss. 
) 

OATH 

The undersigned Robyn Friedman being first duly sworn, hereby deposes, says, an 

solemnly swears that the accompanying Inventory contains a true statement of: (I) all of th 

estate of Kathleen June Jones which came into the possession or knowledge of the undersigne 

during her term of service as temporary guardian· (2) all of the money that belongs to th 

9 protected person insofar as was known to the undersigned during her term of service a 

10 temporary guardian; and (3) all of the just claims of the protected person against the undersigne 

11 during her term of service as temporary guardian, as was known to the undersigned as of th 

12 conclusion of the temporary guardianship. 

13 Upon information and belief all property listed in the Inventory is the sole and separat 

4 property of the protected person. 
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Robyn Friedman 

SUBSCRIBED and AFFIRMED before me this 

15t -J_ day of. 2020, by Robyn Friedman. 
~ 

otary Public in and for said County and State 
C..\~~ NV 

-9-
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1 

2 

3 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
): ss. 

COUNTY OF ORANGE COUNTY ) 

OATH 

4 
The undersigned Donna Simmons being first duly sworn, hereby (leposes, says, an 

5 
solemnly swears that the accompanying Inventory contains a true statement of: (1) all of th 

6 
estate of Kathleen June Jones which came into the possession or knowledge of the undersigne 

7 
during her term of service as temporary guardian; (2) all of the money that belongs to th 

8 
- protected person insofar as was known to the undersigned during her term of service 

9 
temporary guardian; and (3) all of the just claims of the protected person against the undersigne 

10 during her term of service as temporary guardian, as was known to the undersigned as of th 

11 conclusion of the temporary guardianship. 

1 2 Upon information and belief, all property listed in the Inventory is the sole and separat 

1 3 prnperty-_of the protected person. 
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Donna Simmons 

SUBSCRIBED and AF~ED before me this 
,t' lf\/\O"J -

£ day of .Aiffil 2020, by Donna Simmons. 

QODJ,e SAA- ~c.kJ 
NoW)' Public in and for 

-1 0-
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JURAT 

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate 
verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the 
document to which this certificate is attached, and not 
the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 

State of California 

County of ..... R .... iv"'"'e ..... r .... s ... id .... e'----------

Subscribed and sworn to (or affirmed) before me on 

this 1st day of May , 20 =20-=----

by Donna Simmons 

proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the personyr1· who 
appeared before me. . 

(Seal) 

@
-· MARIA SIDA MELGOZA 

_ Notary Public • Calllornla 
~ Riverside .County ~ 
z Commission # 2175844 > 

) 0 0 0 0 0 0M¥ ~o~~ :x~r~s ~•~ ~7 '..-2~2~ ( 

·--·· ··· - . ·· - - --- ----
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VERIFIED RECORD OF VALUE IN LIEU OF APPRAISAL 

Pursuant to NRS 159.086(2), the undersigned Robyn Friedman, former 

guardian of the person and estate of Kathleen June Jones, hereby certifies that the prope 

described in the Inventory in this matter - where a value is assigned - is property where the valu 

can be determined with reasonable certainty. Items for which the value is listed as "unknown' 

require further investigation and/or litigation to quantify, and the undersigned is no longe 

serving as temporary guardian and therefore not in a position to value the property. 

Robyn Friedman 

SUBSCRIBED and AFFIRMED before me this 

~°''-\ 
day of-April, 2020, by Robyn Friedman. 

l~O) 

otary Public in and for said County and State 
<..\~ N\J 

- 12-
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2 

VERIFIED RECORD OF VALUE IN LIEU OF APPRAISAL 

Pursuant to NRS 159-.086(2), the undersigned Donna Simmons, former tempor 

3 guardian of the person and estate of Kathleen June Jones, the protected person, pursuant to NR 

4 159.086(2), hereby certifies that the property described in the Inventory in this matter ~ where 

5 value is assigned - is property where the value can be determined with reasonable certainty. 

6 Items for which the value is listed as "unknown" require further investigation and/or litigation t 

7 quantify, and the undersigned is no longer serving as temporary guardian W1d therefore not in 

s position to value the property. 
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., 

~~ Dmla Simmons . · 

SUBSCRIBED and AFFIRMED before me this 
yY\~ 

1st_ day of Atmt; 2020, by Donna Simmons. 

· lwse Seft a:Bz:tckd notz1ri1ool j wzd-
Notary Public in and for said County and State . 

- 13-
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JURAT 

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate 
verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the 
document to which this certificate is attached, and not 
the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 

State of California 
County of ..._R.,...ivJLle.._.r .... s..,.jd...,e.__ _______ _ 

Subscribed and sworn to (or affirmed) before me on 

this 1st day of May 

by Donna Simmons 

, 20 =2-=-0 __ 

proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) who 
appeared before me. 

(Seal) 

MELGOZA { 
· . · Notary Public., California t 

j •• · Riverside County · ~ 
Commission # 2175844 ~ 
Comm. Ex ires Dec 17. 2020 
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PTEG 
John P. Michaelson, Esq. 
Nevada Bar No. 7822 
Email: john@michaelsonlaw.com 
MICHAELSON & ASSOCIATES, LTD. 
2200 Paseo Verde Parkway, Ste. 160 
Henderson, Nevada 89052 
Ph: (702) 731-2333 
Fax: (702) 731-2337 
Attorneys for Co-Guardians 
 

DISTRICT COURT 
 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
 

IN THE MATTER OF THE GUARDIANSHIP )  
OF THE PERSON AND ESTATE OF:  ) 
       ) Case Number:  G-19-052263-A  

Kathleen June Jones,   ) Department: B 
             )   
   An Adult Protected Person. ) HEARING REQUESTED 
__________________________________________) 
  

PETITION FOR DISCHARGE OF TEMPORARY CO-GUARDIANS 
 

Petitioners, Robyn Friedman and Donna Simmons (hereinafter “Petitioners”), by and through 

the law firm of Michaelson & Associates, Ltd., hereby file this Petition for Discharge of Temporary 

Co-Guardians and represent the following to this Honorable Court: 

1. On December 27, 2005, Kathleen June Jones (“Ms. Jones”) executed a Healthcare Power 

of Attorney naming her daughter Kimberly Jones (“Kimberly”)  as her Attorney-in-Fact for 

healthcare decisions and a General Power of Attorney naming Kimberly as her Attorney-in-Fact 

for financial matters.    

2. On October 24, 2012, Ms. Jones executed a new Financial Power of Attorney again naming 

Kimberly as her Attorney-in-Fact for financial matters.  

3. On November 23, 2012, Ms. Jones executed a Last Will and Testament which named 

Kimberly as Ms. Jones’ chosen Personal Representative and guardian over her person and estate. 

Case Number: G-19-052263-A

Electronically Filed
5/5/2020 1:55 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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4. In 2019, Ms. Jones had a neurological evaluation at the Lou Ruvo Center for Brain Healt 

at the Cleveland Clinic. Dr. Marwan Sabbagh indicated in his letter of September 5, 2019, that Ms. 

Jones suffered a degenerative neurological disorder resulting in impairment of memory, judgmen 

and other cognitive functions and recommended Ms. Jones be appointed a guardian. Se 

Confidential Physician' s Certificate oflncapacity and Medical Records (hereinafter "Confidentia 

Medical Records") filed with this Court on September 19, 2019. 

5. On September 9, 2019, Ms. Jones underwent a second evaluation this time by Dr. Grego 

Brown who indicated that Ms. Jones suffered from "Dementia [Neurocognitive Disorder]" an 

that Ms. Jones "would fulfill the requirements for a guardianship of both person and estate a 

defined by Nevada Revised Statute." See Confidential Medical Records. 

6. On September 19, 2019, Petitioners filed an Ex Parte Petition for Appointment o 

Temporary Guardian of the Person and Estate and Petition for Appointment of Genera 

Guardianship (hereinafter "Petition"). 

7. As set forth in the Petition, there was great concern regarding who should care for Ms. 

Jones, what kind of care she should receive, where she should live, i.e. , visitation by famil 

members, accountability for expenditures of Ms. Jones' funds, and the transfer of her home to th 

daughter and son-in-law of her husband, Gerald Yeoman ("Mr. Yeoman"), for far less than marke 

value without any notice to or discussion with any of Ms. Jones children, nor Kimberly, he 

designated attorney-in-fact, even though Mr. Yeoman and his family knew full-well abou 

Kimberly being Ms. Jones' attorney-in-fact. 

8. As their mother' s ability to care for herself had declined over the years, Petitioners ha 

asked Kimberly and Mr. Yeoman, on multiple occasions, to provide a care plan for Ms. Jones. 

Petitioners felt strongly that plans needed to be made in advance for the inevitable day that Mr. 

- 2 -
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Yeoman would be unable to provide the necessary care for Ms. Jones. Petitioners, Kimberly, an 

Mr. Yeoman could not come to an agreement as to Ms. Jones ' care. 

9. On September 23 , 2019, an Order Granting the Ex Parte Petition for Appointment o 

Temporary Guardians of the Person and Estate was entered appointing Petitioners as tempor 

guardians. Letters of temporary guardianship were subsequently granted. 

10. On September 25 , 2019, MariaL. Parra-Sandoval, Esq. of the Legal Aid Center ofSouthe 

Nevada was appointed as counsel for Ms. Jones. 

11. On October 3, 2019, the Court entered another order extending the temporary guardianshi 

as well as the appointment of Petitioners as temporary guardians. 

12. On October 15, 2019, this Court having heard oral argument on the appointment o 

Petitioners as general guardians for Ms. Jones, having heard Ms. Jones ' wishes to have Kimberl 

serve as her guardian, and Kimberly agreeing to the appointment as general guardian afte 

becoming evident to the Court that the powers of attorney granted to Kimberly had not bee 

sufficient to protect Ms. Jones and that a general guardianship was, in fact, necessary, this Co 

ordered that Kimberly be appointed as general guardian of the person and estate of Ms. Jones. 

13. As a result of the appointment of a general guardian, the temporary guardianshi 

terminated. 

14. Nevada Revised Statutes ("NRS") 159.085(2) provides, "[a] temporary guardian of th 

estate who is not appointed as the general or special guardian shall file an inventory with the co 

by not later than the date on which the temporary guardian files a final accounting as require 

pursuant to NRS 159.177. " 

- 3-
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15. On May 5, 2020, Petitioners filed an Inventory of the estate reporting all assets that came 

into their possession, all the money that belongs to the protected person, and all of the just claims 

of the protected person against the guardian. NRS 159.085(3). 

16. The temporary guardians had very limited information as to their mother’s assets as they 

were never provided with a list of her assets and/or bank accounts as requested from Mr. Yeoman 

and/or Kimberly.  

17. However, in the weeks Petitioners served as temporary guardians, they neither took 

possession, custody nor control of any of Ms. Jones’ property.  In fact, Petitioners expended 

significant sums of their own money in support of the protected person as the protected person 

lacked access to any monies or income at the time. 

18.  Having been aware that Ms. Jones’ owned a timeshare located in Puerto Vallarta, Mexico,  

knowing that their mother wanted to keep the timeshare, and that the maintenance fees on the 

timeshare had not been paid for approximately four (4) years,  Robyn Friedman spent 

approximately $3,000 from her personal funds to keep the maintenance fees current. 

19. Petitioners hereby request this Honorable Court to waive the need to file a formal 

accounting pertaining to their time serving as temporary guardians as neither Robyn Friedman nor 

Donna Simmons took possession, custody or control of any income or assets of Ms. Jones, as 

neither Mr. Yeoman nor Kimberly provided any information related to Ms. Jones’ accounts and/or 

income during the time Petitioners were serving as temporary guardians. 

20. Based upon the foregoing, and in light of the Inventory, Oaths and Verified Records of 

Value filed by Petitioners, Petitioners request that they be discharged and relieved of any liability 

from their term as guardians.  
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WHEREFORE, Petitioners pray: 

1. That all actions taken by Robyn Friedman and Donna Simmons in serving as tempor 

co-guardians be ratified and approved; 

2. That in light of the foregoing, including that Petitioners never took any possession, custod 

or control of any assets, monies or property of the protected person, along with the Inventory, 

Oaths and Verified Records of Value filed by Petitioners, the Court dispense with the requiremen 

that Petitioners file an accounting for the period they served as temporary guardians; and 

3. That Robyn Friedman and Donna Simmons be discharged from any and all liability fo 

their terms of service as temporary co-guardians of the person and estate of Ms. Jones. 

DATED this 4th day of May, 2020. 

Respectfully Submitted: 
MICHAELSON & ASSOCIATES, LTD. 

J P. Michaelson, Esq. 
Nevada Bar No. 7822 
2200 Paseo Verde Parkway, Ste. 160 
Henderson, Nevada 89052 
Counsel for Petitioner 

- 5 -
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STATE OF NEVADA 

COUNTY OF CLARK 

) 
): ss. 
) 

VERIFICATION 

Robyn Friedman, being first duly sworn under penalty of perjury, hereby deposes and says: 

that she is one of the Petitioners in the above-referenced case; that she has read the foregoin 

Petition for Discharge of Temporary Co-Guardians and that she knows the contents thereof; an 

8 
. that the same are true of her own knowledge, except as to those matters therein stated upo 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

6 

17 

18 

9 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

information and belief, and as to those matters, she believes them to be true. 

SUBSCRIBED to and SWORN to me 

this j_ day uf ~ !~ 020. 

OT ARY PUBLIC in and for said 
County and State 
C\~ N--J 

-~~~ 
Robyn Friedman 6 

•

SAMANOEEPKAUADEOL' · 
t«)tmyN,ac-StatectNevooa 

County ct Clark 
APPT. NO. 19-1891-1 

... My App. Expires Jan. 9, 2023 .. 

- 6-
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VERIFICATION 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
): ss. 

COUNTY OF ORANGE COUNTY ) 

Donna Simmons, being first duly sworn under penalty of perjury, hereby deposes and says 

6 
that she is one of the Petitioners in the above-referenced case; that she has read the foregoin 

7 
Petition for Discharge of Temporary Co-Guardians and that she knows the contents thereof; an 

8 

9 

10 

11 
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13 

14 

15 

1 6 

17 

18 

1 9 

20 
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that the same are true of her own knowledge, except as to those matters therein stated upo . 

information and belief, and as to those matters, she believes them to be true. 

~~U\liVVJ cJ\AJ} 
Donna Simmons 

SUBSCRIBED to and SWORN to me 
. M~ ~ 
this~ day of~ 2020. 

CltoJe ~ till71cNd (\otT>-fi~ ~ 
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for said 
County and State 

-7-
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JURAT 

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate 
verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the 
document to which this certificate is attached, and not 
the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 

State of California 
County of ..._R_iv ... e .... c .... si .... d .... e _______ _ 

Subscribed and sworn to (or affirmed) before me on 

this 1st day of May I 20 =20.;..._ __ 

by Donna Simmons 

proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person'8i who 
appeared before me. 

(Seal) 

• 

Notary Public • California i 
i Riverside County ~ 
z Commission# 2175844 ~ 

J. o o o o JA l :0T"l; t•,itt5 ge; 1J }&2d 

---------···- ·--
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DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

IN THE MATTER OF THE GUARDIANSHIP 
OF THE PERSON AND ESTATE OF: 

Kathleen June Jones, 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

An Adult Protected Person. ) 

Case Number: G-19-052263-A 
Department: B 

AFFIDAVIT OF ROBYN FRIEDMAN IN SUPPORT OF PETITION FOR DISCHARGE 
OF TEMPORARY CO-GUARDIANS 

STATE OF NEV ADA 

COUNTY OF CLARK 

) 
): ss. 
) 

I, Robyn Friedman, being first duly sworn, states as follows : 

1. I am Kathleen June Jones ("Ms. Jones") daughter. 

2. On September 19, 2019, I, along with my sister, Donna Simmons, filed a petition to b 

appointed as our mother ' s temporary guardians despite repeated failed attempts to consult wit 

and to come up with a care plan for her with our sister, Kimberly Jones ("Kimberly"), who wa 

our mother' s designated health care and financial power of attorney, and with our mother' 

husband, Gerald Yeoman. 

- 1 -

Case Number: G-19-052263-A

Electronically Filed
5/5/2020 1:55 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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3. As set forth in our Petition in Support of Termination filed contemporaneously herewith, 

there was great concern regarding who should care for my mother, what kind of care she should 

receive, where she should live, i.e., visitation by family members, accountability for expenditures 

of my mother’s assets, and the sale of her home to her husband’s daughter and son-in-law for far 

less than market value without any notice to or discussion with any family members. 

4. On September 23, 2019, Donna Simmons and I were appointed as our mother’s temporary 

guardians. 

5. During my appointment as temporary guardian, I repeatedly asked Gerald Yeoman and 

Kimberly Jones to provide me with medical information related to my mother as well as a list of 

her bank accounts and other assets. The information requested from Mr. Yeoman and Kimberly  

was never provided during my term of service. 

6. On October 3, 2019, an Order was entered extending our appointment as temporary 

guardians. 

7. On October 15, 2019, however, Kimberly finally agreed to serve as guardian and was 

appointed as our mother’s general guardian. 

8. As a result of Kimberly being appointed as general guardian of the person and estate for 

out mother, our appointment as temporary guardians lapsed.  

9. On May 5, 2020, I filed with this Court an Inventory, Oaths and Verified Records of Value 

reporting any and all known assets of my mother’s estate. Because I was not provided with 

information regarding my mother’s accounts, the extent and value in those accounts are unknown 

as indicated on the Inventory. 
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10. My mothers SUV as listed on the Inventory was never in my possession and to m 

knowledge, has always been in the possession of Gerald Yeoman. I have no way of determinin 

the year or model of her SUV. 

11. I have seen in my mother' s paperwork information regarding the value of her timeshar 

located in Puerto Vallarta, Mexico but do not know the value. The maintenance fees on th 

timeshare appeared to have not been paid for about four ( 4) years. Knowing that my mother wante 

to keep the timeshare I paid approximately $3,000 from my own funds to keep the maintenanc 

fees current. 

12. I did not take possession, custody or control of any income or assets of my mother's estat 

and request the requirement of a formal accounting be waived, and that I and my sister b 

discharged from liability for our term of service as co-temporary guardians. 

DA TED:= 6 020. 

SUBSCRIBED and AFFIRMED to before me this 

r day of ~;ti, 2020 Robyn Friedman. 

Yo 6 c__,A_ g 0:::) 
cmRY1>uBuc 

Submitted by: 
MICHAELSO & ASSOCIATES, LTD. 

P. Michaelson, Esq. 
evada Bar o. 7822 

2200 Paseo Verde Parkway, Ste. 160 
Henderson, evada 89052 
Counsel for Petitioner 

- 3 -

•

SAMANOEEPKAUR DEOL 
tt,ta,y PIJ:llc- State or Neva1a 

Countv~Clarl< 
APPT. NO. 19-1891-1 

My App. Expires Jan. e, 202s 
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DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEV ADA 

IN THE MATTER OF THE GUARDIANSHIP 
OF THE PERSON AND EST A TE OF: 

Kathleen June Jones, 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

An Adult Protected Person. ) 

Case Number: G-19-052263-A 
Department: B 

AFFIDAVIT OF DONNA SIMMONS IN SUPPORT OF PETITION FOR DISCHARGE 
OF TEMPORARY CO-GUARDIANS 

ST ATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
) : ss. 

COUNTY OF ORANGE COUNTY ) 

I, Donna Simmons, being first duly sworn, states as follows : 

1. I am Kathleen June Jones ("Ms. Jones") daughter. 

2. On September 19, 2019, I, along with my sister, Robyn Friedman, filed a petition to b 

appointed as our mother ' s temporary guardians despite repeated failed attempts to consult wit 

and to come up with a care plan for her with our sister, Kimberly Jones ("Kimberly"), who wa 

our mother's designated health care and financial power of attorney, and with our mother' 

husband, Gerald Yeoman. 

- 1 -

Case Number: G-19-052263-A

Electronically Filed
5/5/2020 1:55 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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3. As set forth in our Petition in Support of Termination filed contemporaneously herewith, 

there was great concern regarding who should care for my mother, what kind of care she should 

receive, where she should live, i.e., visitation by family members, accountability for expenditures 

of my mother’s assets, and the sale of her home to her husband’s daughter and son-in-law for far 

less than market value without any notice to or discussion with any family members. 

4. On September 23, 2019, Robyn Friedman and I were appointed as our mother’s temporary 

guardians. 

5. During my appointment as temporary guardian, I repeatedly asked Gerald Yeoman and 

Kimberly Jones to provide me with medical information related to my mother as well as a list of 

her bank accounts and other assets. The information requested from Mr. Yeoman and Kimberly  

was never provided during my term of service. 

6. On October 3, 2019, an Order was entered extending our appointment as temporary 

guardians. 

7. On October 15, 2019, however, Kimberly finally agreed to serve as guardian and was 

appointed as our mother’s general guardian. 

8. As a result of Kimberly being appointed as general guardian of the person and estate for 

out mother, our appointment as temporary guardians lapsed.  

9. On May 5, 2020,  I filed with this Court an Inventory, Oaths and Verified Records of Value 

reporting any and all known assets of my mother’s estate. Because I was not provided with 

information regarding my mother’s accounts, the extent and value in those accounts are unknown 

as indicated on the Inventory. 
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1 
10. My mother's SUV as listed on the Inventory was never in my possession and, tom 

2 knowledge, h1:_1s always been in the possession of Gerald Yeoman. 

3 the year or model of her SUV. 

4 11. I did not take possession, custody or control of any income or assets of my mother' s estat 

s and request the requirement of a formal accounting be waived, and that I and my sister 

6 discharged from liability for our tenn of service as co-temporary guardians. 

7 

8 

9 

DATED: April·::::, 2020.. \\9-
(X\(l~ \ I ?-l)J{) 

~on?ffimnw 
10 SUBSCRIBED and AFFIRMED to before me this . ft\0-.>-f 
11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

::i.csr day of.Apri¼;-2020, Donna Simmons. 

PLwJe SQQ_ ~c( 
NOTARY PUBLIC 

Submitted by: 
MICHAELSON & ASSOCIATES, LTD. 

o P. Michaelson, Esq. 
vada Bar No. 7822 

2200 Paseo Verde Parkway, Ste. 160 
1 9 .Henderson, Nevada 89052 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Counsel for Petitioner 

~ 

-3-

j. 

I 

1511



JURAT 

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate 
verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the 
document to which this certificate is attached, and not 
the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 

State of California 
County of .... B"""iv....,e .... r_s .... id .... e...._ _______ _ 

Subscribed and sworn to (or affirmed) before me on 

this 1st day of May , 20 20 ----
by Donna Simmons 

proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person~ who 
appeared before me. 

(Seal) 

'• . MARIA SIDA MELGOZA 
- · , Notary Public • California i • Riverside County ~ 

mm1ss1on # 2175844 > 
s Dec 17, 202ot 

- --- -- ·· · ·---- ----- ---- - - ·- ·-· -------
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Case Number: G-19-052263-A

Electronically Filed
5/7/2020 2:02 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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Marquis Aurbach Coffing
Geraldine Tomich, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 8369
James A. Beckstrom, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 14032
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Telephone: (702) 382-0711
Facsimile: (702) 382-5816
gtomich@maclaw.com
jbeckstrom@maclaw.com
Attorneys for Kimberly Jones

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

In the Matter of the Guardianship of Estate of:

KATHLEEN JUNE JONES,

Protected Person.

Case No.: G-19-052263-A
Dept. No.: B

CHAMBERS
HEARING REQUESTED

PETITION FOR APPROVAL TO REFINANCE REAL PROPERTY OF THE
PROTECTED PERSON

Plaintiff, Kimberly Jones, as Guardian of the Person and Estate of Kathleen June Jones,

through the law firm of Marquis Aurbach Coffing, hereby files this Petition for Approval to

Refinance Real Property of the Protected Person (“Petition”). This Petition is based on the

following Points and Authorities, the pleadings and papers on file herein, and any oral argument

by counsel permitted at the hearing on this matter.

Dated this 8th day of May, 2020.
MARQUIS AURBACH COFFING

By /s/ James A. Beckstrom
Geraldine Tomich, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 8369
James A. Beckstrom, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 14032
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Attorneys for Kimberly Jones

Case Number: G-19-052263-A

Electronically Filed
5/8/2020 5:23 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURTCLERK KKKKKKK OF THE COURTRTURTRTRTURTTTT
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS OF AUTHORITIES

I. INTRODUCTION

June Jones (“June”) is the sole owner of real property commonly described as 1054 S.

Verde Street, Anaheim, CA 92805 (the “Property”). June has owned the Property for years, long

before marrying her current husband. The Property is her sole and separate property. The Property

has significant equity and currently has a mortgage balance of $105,865.00 with a 6.5 % interest

rate.1 The Property is currently valued at approximately $606,109.00.2

For years June has rented the Property for income, which she desperately has relied on. In

the most recent years, June rented the Property to her son—Scott Simmons.3 Scott paid June

$1,200 per month.4 However, as June’s current situation demands additional income, June in

agreement with her Guardian Kimberly determined that June needed to maximize one of her largest

assets and could no longer afford to lease the Property to Scott for a reduced amount.5

Scott recently has vacated the Property. Unfortunately, the Property is in deplorable shape

and is untenable.6 While the Property should fetch a monthly rent of approximately $2,500.00, in

its current state the Property cannot be leased.7 In order to lease the Property, approximately

$20,000 needs to be invested into the home to make necessary repairs.8 To do so, Kimberly with

the permission and approval of June seeks to refinance the Property. Refinancing will greatly

1 Verification of Kimberly Jones, infra.

2 See Zillow.com Assessment, attached as Exhibit 1.

3 Verification of Kimberly Jones, infra.

4 Id.

5 Id.

6 See Photographs of Property, attached as Exhibit 2.

7 Verification of Kimberly Jones, infra.

8 Id.
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benefit June by providing her with additional income and dropping her monthly mortgage

approximately $300.00.

Currently June’s monthly income is approximately $1,500 consisting of social Security.9

With June unable to rent her Kraft Avenue Property, because it was taken from her for no

consideration by her husband and his son-in-law (the subject of ongoing litigation), June is left

only with income from her social security.

June has the ability to refinance the Property at 3.5% and extract $37,981.00 at the same

time.10 In doing so, June would increase her mortgage to $150,000 for a fixed term of 30 years,

but because of the lower interest rate, her monthly payment would remain almost the same at

$673.57.11 12With this additional money, Kimberly, on behalf of June will be able to rehab the

Property and increase her monthly income drastically. The remainder of the funds from the

refinance will be utilized for June’s well-being and care, where Kimberly will account for all such

funds in her required reporting to this Court. This accounting will itemize the work performed,

materials purchased, and remaining cash on hand. This transaction is a true “win-win” for June

and there is no viable argument this refinance would not be in her best interest. As such, Kimberly

asks this Court to authorize her to refinance the existing mortgage.

A. THIS COURT SHOULD APPROVE THE PROTECTED PERSON’S
REFINANCE OF HER INVESTMENT PROPERTY.

NRS 159.121 requires court approval for any money “borrowed” on behalf of the

protected person. NRS 159.121 states:

NRS 159.121 Borrowing money for protected person.

1. A guardian of the estate, with prior approval of the court by order, may
borrow money for the account of the protected person when necessary:

9 Id.; See also, Accounting, on file.

10 See Proposed Refinance Terms, Breakdown, Mortgage and Insurance Statement, collectively attached as
Exhibit 3.

11 Id.
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(a) To continue any business of the protected person.

(b) To pay claims against the protected person, the guardianship estate or the
guardian of the estate as such.

(c) To provide for the proper care, maintenance, education and support of
the protected person and any person to whom the protected person owes a legal
duty of support.

(d) For any other purpose that is in the best interests of the protected person.

2. If the court determines that the borrowing is necessary or proper, the
court shall make an order approving the borrowing and may authorize one or
more separate loans. The order shall prescribe the maximum amount of each
loan, the maximum rate of interest and the date of final maturity of each loan,
and may authorize the guardian to secure any loan by mortgage, deed of trust,
pledge or other security transaction authorized by the laws of this state. The order
shall describe the property, if any, to be given as security for each loan.

(Emphasis added).

Here, as stated above, this is a straightforward request in the best interest of June. June

currently has a mortgage on the Property at a much higher interest rate than what is now available.

With the Property untenable, June’s financial interests are advanced greatly if she can repair the

home and obtain monthly rent from a third party. Kimberly submits the proposed terms for this

Court’s review as stated in Exhibit 3.

Kimberly will provide the Court with photographs and documentation of the repairs upon

completion of the remodel, as well as a description of the rental proceeds and all related holding

costs.

II. CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoing, Kimberly ask this Court to grant this request to refinance.

Thereafter, Kimberly will submit an order to this Court consistent with NRS 159.121(2).

Dated this 8th day of May, 2020.
MARQUIS AURBACH COFFING

By /s/ James A. Beckstrom
Geraldine Tomich, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 8369
James A. Beckstrom, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 14032
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
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VERIFICATION OF KIMBERLY JONES

Kimberly Jones hereby declares I am the Guardian of the person and estate of June Jones.

I have read the foregoing Petition and know the contents therein. All of the statements in the

Petition are true and correct according to the best of my knowledge.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of Nevada that the foregoing

is true and correct.

/s/ Kimberly Jones
Kimberly Jones
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that the foregoing PETITION FOR APPROVAL TO REFINANCE

REAL PROPERTY OF THE PROTECTED PERSON was submitted electronically for filing

and/or service with the Eighth Judicial District Court on the 8th day of May, 2020. Electronic

service of the foregoing document shall be made in accordance with the E-Service List as

follows:13

Ty E. Kehoe, Esq.
KEHOE & ASSOCIATES

871 Coronado Center Drive, Ste. 200
Henderson, NV 89052

Matthew C. Piccolo, Esq.
PICCOLO LAW OFFICES

2450 St. Rose Pkwy., Ste. 210
Henderson, NV 89074

Laura Deeter, Esq.
Nedda Ghandi, Esq.

725 S. 8th Street, Ste. 100
Las Vegas, NV 89101

Attorneys for Rodney Gerald Yeoman

Maria L. Parra-Sandoval, Esq.
LEGAL AID OF SOUTHERN NEVADA

725 E. Charleston Blvd.
Las Vegas, NV 89104

Attorneys for Protected Person

John P. Michaelson, Esq.
MICHAELSON & ASSOCIATES, LTD.

2200 Paseo Verde Parkway, Ste. 160
Henderson, NV 89052

Jeffery R. Sylvester, Esq.
SYLVESTER & POLEDNAK

1731 Village Circle # 120
Las Vegas, NV 89134

Attorneys for Robyn Friedman and Donna Simmons

13 Pursuant to EDCR 8.05(a), each party who submits an E-Filed document through the E-Filing System
consents to electronic service in accordance with NRCP 5(b)(2)(D).
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Sonia Jones, Guardianship Financial Forensic Specialist
Guardianship Compliance Office

Supreme Court of Nevada
408 E. Clark Ave.

Las Vegas, NV 89101
sjones@nvcourts.nv.gov

I further certify that I served a copy of this document by mailing a true and correct copy

thereof, postage prepaid, addressed to:

Teri Butler
586 N. Magdelena St.

Dewey, AZ 86327

Scott Simmons
1054 S. Verde St.

Anaheim, CA 92805

Jen Adamo
14 Edgewater Dr.

Magnolia, DE 19962

Jon Criss
804 Harksness Ln., Unit 3

Redondo Beach, CA 90278

Ryan O’Neal
112 Malvern Ave., Apt. E

Fullerton, CA 92832

Tiffany O’Neal
177 N. Singingwood St., Unit 13

Orange, Ca 92869

Cortney Simmons
765 Kimbark Ave.

San Bernardino, CA 92407

Ampersand Man
c/o Robyn Friedman
2824 High Sail Ct.

Las Vegas, NV 89117

Director Dept. of Health
and Human Srvc.

4126 Technology Way, 100
Carson City, NV 89706-2009

/s/ Cheryl Becnel
An employee of Marquis Aurbach Coffing
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GHANDI DEETER BLACKHAM 
Laura A. Deeter, Esq. 
Nevada Bar No. 10562 
725 S. 8th Street, Suite 100 
Las Vegas, Nevada  89101 
Telephone:  (702) 878-1115 
Facsimile: (702) 979-2485 
laura@ghandilaw.com 
 
KEHOE & ASSOCIATES 
TY E. KEHOE, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 006011 
871 Coronado Center Drive, Suite 200 
Henderson, Nevada 89052 
Telephone: (702) 837-1908 
Facsimile: (702) 837-1932 
TyKehoeLaw@gmail.com 

 
  Matthew C. Piccolo, Esq. 
  Nevada Bar No. 14331 
  PICCOLO LAW OFFICES 
  8565 S Eastern Ave Ste 150  
  Las Vegas, NV 89123 
  Tel: (702) 749-3699 
  Fax: (702) 944-6630 
  matt@piccololawoffices.com 
 
 Attorneys for Rodney Gerald Yeoman 
 

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 
FAMILY DIVISION 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
 
 
In the matter of the Guardianship of the Person 
and Estate of: 
 
 KATHLEEN JUNE JONES, 
 
  Adult Protected Person. 
 

             
   Case No.:     G-19-052263-A 
   Dept. No:     B 
 
   Date:  May 20, 2020 
   Time:  9:00 a.m. 

 
REPLY TO OPPOSITIONS RE PETITION FOR REMOVAL OF GUARDIAN AND 

FOR RETURN OF PROTECTED PERSON’S PROPERTY 
 
 Rodney Gerald Yeoman (“Gerry”), husband of the Protected Person Kathleen June Jones 

(“June”), by and through his counsel of record, submits this Reply to Opposition to Petition for 

Case Number: G-19-052263-A

Electronically Filed
5/13/2020 8:54 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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Removal of Guardian pursuant to NRS 159.185 and 159.18531 and for Return of Protected 

Person’s Property pursuant to NRS 159.305. 

SUMMARY 

Petition to Remove 

The Oppositions filed by Kimberly and June fail to acknowledge that although Kimberly 

has presented a deposit slip showing she allegedly returned June’s money, she still has not 

explained or provided any evidence of what happened to June’s money during the many months 

it was allegedly in a safe deposit box. Kimberly has presented no evidence to show she actually 

opened a safety deposit box or placed any funds into it.  

The Oppositions also fail to recognize that misappropriation of a protected person’s funds 

is grounds for removal, even if no financial harm actually occurred to the protected person. This 

is similar to an attorney “borrowing” funds from a client trust account. It simply is not permitted, 

even if the funds are eventually returned to the client in full. Other grounds also exist to remove 

Kimberly. For example, Kimberly continues to isolate June from Gerry by monitoring her phone 

calls and taking away her cell phone.  

In addition, when Kimberly was originally named guardian, the Court appointed an 

investigator to examine June’s financial estate. At that time, the Court acknowledged it could 

revise all aspects of the guardianship in the future and was willing to do so, and the Court 

scheduled an evidentiary hearing to consider the same. As a result of the Court’s expressed 

intentions, documentary evidence was not presented, discovery was not conducted, and an 

evidentiary hearing was not held prior to the appointment of Kimberly. Gerry was willing to be 

patient and let the process progress with the Investigator and the evidentiary hearing. Now that 

 
1 Alternatively, Gerry petitions the Court to modify the guardianship pursuant to NRS 159.1905 
based on the same facts provided in this Petition. 
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the Investigators’ reports have been submitted, Gerry requests an opportunity to conduct 

discovery and have an evidentiary hearing, and he requests a ruling herein specifically itemizing 

the factual findings upon which the Court is relying to determine that Kimberly was and currently 

is the “most suitable” person to be June’s guardian and should be preferred over June’s spouse. 

See NRS 159.0613.   

Kimberly’s Opposition is full of unsubstantiated and, ultimately, false allegations. It is 

understandable the Court might presume these allegations are true at the beginning of this 

process; however, Gerry requests an opportunity to conduct discovery and present evidence to 

establish the actual facts this Court should consider in deciding who is the most suitable guardian 

for June moving forward. Hearing the actual evidence would allow the Court to make a fully 

informed decision and all parties involved will feel they have been involved in a fair process 

with an opportunity to be heard sufficiently. 

There are no allegations that Gerry inadequately cared for June. The Investigator found 

no financial impropriety by Gerry. The only allegation is related to June selling her Kraft house 

to Gerry’s daughter and son-in-law. Contrary to the repeatedly false statement of Kimberly, June 

did receive consideration for this transfer.2 Kimberly’s Petition to Refinance filed on May 8, 

2020 indicates June’s ability to be involved in making decisions regarding her real property, and 

yet Kimberly alleges June was unable to do so in January 2018. The Court has received no 

authenticated medical records regarding June’s mental capacity in January 2018, and very 

limited medical records of any type. The Court’s Medical Investigator has presented no medical 

 
2 Kimberly states repeatedly in multiple pleadings that June’s Kraft property “was taken from 
her for no consideration” even though it is undisputed Dick Powell paid off June’s $140,000 
mortgage.  See Investigator’s Report filed March 13, 2020, Page 8, paragraph 8(f).  Most recently 
this false statement was included in Kimberly’s Motion to Refinance filed on May 8, 2020.  This 
is just one example of an inflammatory falsehood presented by Kimberly without any evidentiary 
basis for the same. 
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records herein. Instead, only unsubstantiated claims have been made by Kimberly and Gerry has 

not had an opportunity to investigate those claims or cross examine Kimberly. Gerry should have 

the opportunity to conduct discovery and have an evidentiary hearing regarding who is most 

suitable to be June’s guardian. 

Gerry, June’s husband of ten years, is qualified, suitable, and willing to serve as guardian 

of June’s person. The Court should appoint him to that role and replace Kimberly with a neutral 

guardian of June’s estate. 

Petition to Recover 

The Oppositions filed by Kimberly and June gloss over Kimberly’s taking of funds from 

June. They ignore that Kimberly failed to account for the funds prior to the Investigator filing 

her first report, even though Kimberly had months to do so, and they fail to adequately 

substantiate Kimberly allegedly putting money into a safe deposit box. The Oppositions entirely 

ignore that Kimberly failed to list either the cash or the safe deposit box on her sworn inventory 

filed herein. Kimberly has also failed to provide any documentary evidence regarding the safe 

deposit box, such as:  proof of who owns the safe deposit box, where the safe deposit box is 

located, and the signature card showing access to the safe deposit box. Kimberly has also failed 

to adequately explain why she allegedly left the cash in the safe deposit box for approximately 

seven months. She has also failed to explain why on March 13, 2020 her attorney promised the 

Investigator:  “Kimberly will provide proof of the transfer back into June’s account today” and 

yet Kimberly did not do so until April 2, 2020. The Court should require Kimberly to address all 

of these concerns both in connection with the Petition to Recover and to the Petition to Remove. 

Additionally, this Court needs to rule on whether Kimberly was justified in taking June’s 

$2,000 to hire an attorney without Court authorization.   

/ / / 
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 Interested Persons Versus Parties 

 At the last hearing, the Court requested further briefing regarding interested persons 

versus parties, particularly for purposes of conducting discovery. If a person is simply an 

interested person under NRS 159.0195, then that person is not subject to discovery requests as a 

party. This point was made clear by Gerry in his Opposition to the Motion for Protective Order 

and reiterated by the Court at the last hearing. The pending issue for which the Court requested 

further briefing regards when an interested person becomes a party for purposes of discovery. 

Unfortunately, Kimberly’s and June’s Oppositions focused upon whether an interested person is 

subject to discovery as a party (which they definitely are not), and did not focus on what the 

Court requested which is:  “when does an interested person become a party?” Amazingly, Robyn 

and Donna, the only people this issue affects, have not filed any pleading at all. It is unclear why 

the guardianship estate and the protected person’s attorney are wasting the protected person’s 

estate filing pleadings on behalf of individuals who allege not to even be parties herein, but who 

are also seeking over $60,000 in attorney fees. 

 A person does not become subject to discovery as a party simply because they are listed 

in the statute as a defined interested party. Gerry concedes an interested party also needs to do 

more than make a limited appearance to be subject to discovery as a party. For instance, June’s 

daughter Terri appeared at one hearing herein, and spoke at that hearing, but did not become a 

party. In contrast, Robyn and Donna have retained counsel herein, appeared at every hearing, 

requested relief at every hearing, were appointed temporary guardians, and are seeking over 

$60,000 in attorney fees. As a result, Robyn and Donna constitute parties subject to discovery as 

parties. 

/ / / 

/ / / 
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ARGUMENT 

A. Kimberly Jones Has Mismanaged June’s Estate and Is Not Otherwise 
Qualified or Suitable to Be Her Guardian. 
 

1. Kimberly’s conduct is of grave concern because she has still failed to explain 
what she did with June’s money. 
 

What the Oppositions fail to acknowledge is that Kimberly still has not resolved the 

concerns expressed by the Court-appointed investigator in her report on March 13, 2020. The 

Investigator wrote the following: 

There is concern that Kimberly Jones withdrew a total of $6,836.82 from the 
Protected Person and Rodney Yeoman’s funds, for personal and unknown 
reasons, to include: 
 

• There is concern that Kimberly Jones withdrew $4,836.00, from a newly 
opened account of the Protected Person and Rodney Gerald Yeoman in 
August 2019, for unknown reasons. 
 

• There is concern that Kimberly Jones withdrew $2,000.00 from account 
ending 7492 in July 2019, for unknown reasons. Kimberly indicated that 
she spent these funds for legal assistance on behalf of the Protected 
person.3 
 

Given the statutory, fiduciary, and ethical duties of a Court-appointed guardian, these 

concerns are vital to address. Indeed, the Investigator recommended that Kimberly “provide 

documentation for withdrawals executed from the accounts in question.”4 She noted that 

“Kimberly indicated that she will provide[] documentation that these funds are in a safe deposit 

box,” and “she will provide documentation for this withdrawal [for legal assistance].”5 Note that 

the Investigator made this statement 150 days (nearly 5 months) after the Court ordered the 

investigation, and months after the Investigator began her research and requested documentation 

from Kimberly.  

 
3 Investigator’s first report (Exhibit 2 to the Opposition) at page 10. 
4 Id. 
5 Id. 
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On April 20, 2020, after Gerry filed his Petition, the Investigator provided a supplement 

stating that Kimberly provided a receipt showing that $5,000.00 was deposited into June’s 

account ending 7492 on April 2, 2020. She also stated that Kimberly provided a legal bill for 

services from Johnson & Johnson Law Offices.6 Notably, Kimberly did not provide any evidence 

that she deposited June’s $5,000.00 into a safety deposit box as claimed or what she did with the 

$5,000.00 during the many months she possessed it. Apparently, she returned the funds months 

later—after the Investigator revealed her concerns about it, and weeks after she promised the 

Investigator she would return the funds “today.” Kimberly also failed to mention on her sworn 

Inventory filed herein that June—or she—possessed the $5,000.00 in a safety deposit box. 

Kimberly’s failure to account for her possession and use of June’s funds, even after having 

months to do so, is gravely concerning. To this day, even after filing an Opposition, Kimberly 

has not explained to the Investigator or the Court what happened to those funds during the 

intervening months. 

Nevada guardianship law makes it clear that “the assets of the protected person must not 

be commingled with the assets of any third party,” NRS 159.073(1)(c)(1)(IV), and that a 

guardian must “[p]rotect, preserve and manage the income, assets and estate of the protected 

person and utilize the income, assets and estate of the protected person solely for the benefit of 

the protected person.” NRS 159.073(1)(c)(1)(III). In addition, as far back as 1932 the Nevada 

Supreme Court made it clear that funds of a protected person are not to be mingled with funds 

of the guardian. In re Anderson’s Guardianship, 54 Nev. 108, 113 (1932) states:  “‘It was the 

duty of the guardian to keep the money of his ward separate and intact from his own funds, and 

invest the same for the best interest of his ward.’ Deegan v. Deegan, supra. ‘It was the clear legal 

 
6 Note that the receipt for $2,000 has a date of “7/22/2018,” even though Kimberly claims she 
paid the funds in 2019; thus, evidentiary issues exist with these funds as well. 
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duty of a guardian to keep separate all guardianship funds in his hands, and not to commingle 

them with his own individual property.’ Crothers v. Crothers, 123 Md. 603, 91 A. 691, 693.” 

Kimberly withdrew thousands of dollars from June’s account and has not accounted for 

them. She alleges she placed them in a safety deposit box but has not provided any evidence of 

doing so. As a result, it is possible, if not probable, she commingled June’s funds with her own, 

or worse, spent June’s funds for her own benefit and then eventually replaced them after the 

investigative light shown on her.  

Even if Kimberly replaced June’s funds after receiving scrutiny, her failure to replace 

them for months, and her continued failure to account for them during those intervening months, 

is evidence of mismanagement of June’s assets. To make an appropriate analogy, any good 

attorney knows you simply cannot remove funds from a client’s trust account for any purpose 

other than to benefit the client, and commingling a client’s funds with your own is a clear 

violation of fiduciary duties and the rules of ethics. Similarly, Kimberly’s taking June’s funds, 

using them for some unknown purpose, and then restoring the funds to June’s account is a 

violation of her duties as a guardian. 

In re Guardianship of Brown, 436 N.E.2d 877, 887 (Ind. Ct. App. 1982) confirms the 

Nevada Supreme Court’s position, and extends it by indicating that no harm to the protected 

person is required to show a breach of trust by the guardian. The court in Brown removed the 

guardian based upon the totality of issues in that case. Brown states:   

While no showing exists that Garland was guilty of converting any of the 
guardianship funds for his personal use, the fact that the funds were commingled 
makes an accounting difficult and constitutes a breach of trust. Certainly, this 
manner of manipulating funds is not how a guardian should handle the assets of 
his wards.7   

 

 
7 Brown at 887. 
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Here, even if Kimberly did not convert June’s funds to her personal use, the fact that she likely 

commingled the funds and has failed to account for what happened to them during intervening 

months constitutes a violation of her fiduciary duties as a guardian. Returning the funds after 

being compelled to do so does not remedy the misconduct. 

 A guardian who is incapable of accounting for the possession and use of a protected 

person’s assets, even after months of scrutiny from the Investigator and the Court, is not qualified 

or suitable to be guardian. Kimberly should no longer serve as June’s guardian or, at a minimum, 

the Court should allow the parties to conduct discovery regarding these issues to determine what 

Kimberly actually did with June’s money. 

2. Kimberly is not qualified or suitable to be June’s guardian for numerous other 
reasons. 

 
The Oppositions argue that Gerry’s Petition merely raises old arguments, but it is clear 

that Kimberly’s misconduct regarding June’s money is a current and ongoing concern. 

Moreover, many other of Kimberly’s recent actions should disqualify her from being June’s 

guardian.  

• Kimberly will not share with June’s spouse who is caring for June when Kimberly 

and her boyfriend Dean are not at the Kraft house with her. 

• Kimberly continues to hover over June’s phone calls with her spouse, including 

setting specific times they can talk and limiting the topics they are allowed to discuss. 

• Kimberly has taken away June’s phone and given it to someone else to use (possibly 

her boyfriend Dean). Thus, June is now able to communicate only with Kimberly 

acting as the gate keeper because it is Kimberly’s telephone June is required to use. 

This action by Kimberly is contrary to NRS 159.328(1)(n). 

• The November 25, 2019 Order appointing Kimberly as guardian herein specifically 

states:  “Kimberly Jones shall disseminate the medical records and/or information 
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relating to Kathleen June Jones to Robyn Friedman, Donna Simmons and Rodney 

Gerald Yeoman.”8 Kimberly has failed to comply with this portion of the order. 

Brown makes clear that a guardian unnecessarily isolating a protected person is grounds 

for removal of the guardian. That court made the following findings and ruling: 

That Garland R. Brown maintains his office at 1005 in the same 
apartment building; that no one is allowed to visit with said wards 
without the consent of Garland R. Brown; that all telephone calls 
to and from said wards are monitored through the office phone of 
Garland R. Brown; that the buzzer in the entryway to said 
apartment of said wards has been disconnected so that contact 
cannot be established directly with the apartment of said wards, 
and all conversations within the apartment of said wards can be 
monitored in the office of Garland R. Brown; that he has 
intentionally and systematically isolated and sequestered his 
wards from social contact with friends and family members; and 
that such acts are tantamount to imprisonment. 
*** 
The court also found that Garland was isolating and sequestering 
his parents from social contact with friends and family members 
to a degree ‘tantamount to imprisonment.’ Garland asserts that his 
strict regulation of who could see his parents was necessary for 
their medical welfare. The fact that Harold and Lottie were infirm 
and needed to be protected is well established. However, we agree 
with the trial court that upon the facts of this case the guardian of 
the persons of Harold and Lottie needed to be an impartial 
outsider who was not entangled in the various family altercations 
which accompany the interactions of the Brown family. The 
removal of Garland from the guardianship was within the 
discretion of the trial court which presided over the hearing and 
which had a first-hand perspective over the facts. We find no abuse 
of discretion by the trial court. (emphasis added)9 
 

As laid out herein, Kimberly is systematically preventing June from freely communicating with 

her spouse, which is further current evidence that Kimberly is not capable of fulfilling her duties 

as guardian. Kimberly continues to isolate June from her husband, even though the Court has 

ordered Kimberly to co-operate with Gerry regarding visitation and allow him to be with June 

 
8 November 25, 2019 Order at 6:21. 
9 Brown at 888. 
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from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. The supervised visits make Gerry so uncomfortable that he has 

nearly given up hope of ever being able to spend time with his wife again. 

 Gerry initially raised, and has continued to raise, many concerns about Kimberly’s 

suitability to be June’s guardian, which he discussed in his Petition. The concerns arising from 

recent events described above are an extension of the concerns expressed before. Surprisingly, 

the Court has not allowed the parties to conduct discovery regarding the innumerable factual and 

evidentiary issues that have existed since these proceedings began. 

3. Kimberly’s Opposition is full of false, unverified, and unsubstantiated 
statements. 

 
The following extensive list includes only some of the false and unsubstantiated 

statements by Kimberly. It does not address the falsities alleged in Kimberly’s, Robyn’s and 

Donna’s original pleadings herein. 

• Kimberly’s Opposition states that “Kimberly ‘forcibly taking June from her husband 

before the guardianship proceedings occurred (a false claim that was already 

entertained and denied by this Court in [Gerry’s] prior Petition.”10 However, there 

was never any evidence considered by this Court and there was no ruling made by 

this Court on this specific topic. 

• Kimberly’s Opposition states that Gerry “has all but abandoned his wife over the past 

four months.”11 This is entirely false, but in any case, if Kimberly wishes to conduct 

discovery regarding the same and have an evidentiary hearing to present her 

evidence, Gerry would welcome the same. In any case, this Court should not accept 

as true mere allegations made by Kimberly.12 

 
10 Kimberly’s Opposition at 2:27. 
11 Id. at 3:4. 
12 It is interesting to note that Kimberly’s Opposition is not verified.  Perhaps this is because 
Kimberly is aware of the numerous false statements made in the Opposition. 
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• Kimberly’s Opposition falsely claims the Investigator’s report found:  ”The Kraft 

Avenue Property was transferred to Richard Powell, but no consideration was paid 

into any account of June.”13 This is entirely false, which Kimberly knows. In fact, the 

Investigator’s report states that Dick paid $140,000 toward June’s mortgage account, 

and that June “continued to be supported by the agreement with Richard Powell and 

Kandi Powell.”14 Nonetheless, Kimberly continues to make this false, inflammatory 

allegation, even though it is undisputed that June received, and continues to receive, 

consideration for the Kraft House. 

• Kimberly’s Opposition states that Gerry “is 87 years old with a list of physical 

ailments rendering him wholly unfit to serve the extensive needs of June.”15 This 

allegation is also made without evidence and is contrary to the statements of two of 

Gerry’s doctors. In addition, there is nothing cited to by the Oppositions that suggest 

Gerry, as June’s spouse, is unable to be guardian and provide care for his wife while 

also using assistance of third parties. Gerry has evidenced in the past a willingness to 

hire help if necessary, and there are no allegations that June was ever mis-cared for. 

• Kimberly’s Opposition repeatedly infers Gerry’s bad actions in relation to Gerry and 

June’s dogs.16 These allegations are entirely spurious. The disputes were resolved 

with neither side admitting any wrongdoing. This language was agreed to by 

Kimberly. Thus, it is entirely in bad faith for Kimberly to be making these arguments. 

 
13 Id. at 7:22; see also 3:7 and 3:20 (referring to “the transfer of June’s personal residence to 
his daughter and son-in-law for no consideration.”). 
14 Investigator’s first report (Exhibit 2 to the Opposition) at page 8. 
15 Kimberly’s Opposition at 3:7. 
16 Id. at 3:13, 7:3 and 15:3. 
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• Kimberly’s Opposition states: “Since approximately 2014, June’s memory and 

cognition have been in decline.”17 However, no evidence has ever been presented in 

support of this allegation. 

• Kimberly’s Opposition states:  “In 2017 June was diagnosed with a degenerative 

neurological disorder and has since been seeing specialists at the Cleveland Clinic’s 

Luo Ruvo Center in Las Vegas for treatment.”18 However, no evidence has ever been 

presented in support of this allegation. 

• Kimberly’s Opposition provides some 2016 medical records from UCI as Exhibit 9.19 

However, these records have never been authenticated. These records were not found 

by nor produced by the Court’s medical investigator. The documents attached as 

Exhibit 9 are only a couple of pages from hundreds of pages of medical records. The 

documents attached as Exhibit 9 include pages 97 through 102 but exclude page 98. 

Page 99 of Exhibit 9 states that “Gerry is patient’s preferred medical decision maker 

per her today.” Thus, all of the allegations about Kimberly being the preferred 

medical decision maker are not substantiated by Kimberly’s own exhibit. 

• Kimberly’s Opposition states:  “In or around March 2019, Kimberly and her sisters 

discovered the [Kraft] Property had been sold on January 16, 2018. . .”20 However, 

no evidence has ever been presented in support of this allegation. Gerry believes they 

learned of the sale many months earlier. In addition, Kimberly has never explained 

why she waited about five months to hire an attorney to address the concerns. 

 
17 Id at 4:9. 
18 Id. at 4:10. 
19 Id. at 19:27. 
20 Id. at 4:13. 
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• Kimberly’s Opposition states that Dick Powell “completed and recorded” the Kraft 

property Declaration of Value.21 However, no evidence has ever been presented in 

support of this allegation. The Investigator’s report indicates that QuickClaim USA 

was the entity that completed and recorded the Kraft property transfer documents. 

• Kimberly’s Opposition states that Gerry and Dick “consistently wrote various checks 

from June’s account for various items and even removed June from her marital 

checking account . . .”22 However, no evidence has ever been presented in support of 

this allegation. These transactions were apparently discovered after the sale of the 

Kraft property. However, Kimberly was a signer on the account the entire time, and 

allegedly June’s power of attorney. So why did she never “discover” these concerns 

prior to the sale? Gerry has always admitted he signed checks for the benefit of the 

marital community for years, using his own signature and not June’s name, which 

June, the Bank, and Kimberly as a co-signer on the account permitted. Additionally, 

Gerry states that Dick did not sign checks on the account. Additionally, Gerry states 

that June was involved with all of her bank account changes, and Dick was not 

involved in them. 

• Kimberly’s Opposition mentions an eviction action and attaches a docket related to 

the same as Exhibit 1. The Court should note that Kimberly and Dean collectively 

refused to pay the $71 filing fee claiming pauper status. Upon information and belief, 

this claim by Kimberly and Dean was fraud upon the eviction court. Kimberly drives 

a late model Jaguar. Dean drives a late model Corvette. Kimberly and Dean are living 

for free in the Kraft property. Gerry looks forward to obtaining a copy of the 

 
21 Id. 4:5. 
22 Id. at 5:7. 
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application for forma pauperis filed by Kimberly and Dean. To the extent Kimberly 

and Dean were truly unable to pay a $71 filing fee, then this Court should be 

concerned about their fitness to be guardian of the estate of June with unrestricted 

access to June’s funds. 

• Kimberly’s Opposition states “Kimberly has dedicated her life to caring for [June]. 

This includes bathing and changing June, driving June to medical appointments. . .”23 

It is undisputed that Gerry did these same things for June for approximately 9 years, 

without any complaints by June’s family, including no complaints by Kimberly who 

was allegedly the general and medical power of attorney for June. Gerry would have 

continued doing so for June to the present time if June had not been wrongly taken 

by Kimberly and others. 

• Kimberly’s Opposition states: “[the account from which Kimberly took June’s funds] 

was an account in which [Gerry] and [Dick] opened and funded with money from 

June . . .”24 However, no evidence has ever been presented in support of this 

allegation, and it is false. Gerry and June went to the bank together and opened up 

the new account and funded it with money from the old account. The money was 

June’s, and Kimberly was wrongfully taking funds out of June’s account, including 

for paying Kimberly’s attorney. 

• Kimberly’s Opposition suggests Kimberly took funds out of June’s new account, put 

them back into June’s old account, and then withdrew them from June’s old account 

and put them into the safe deposit box.25 This narrative contradicts Kimberly’s 

declaration attached to her Opposition as Exhibit 6 and no documentation presented 

 
23 Id. at 11:6.  
24 Id. at 11:11. 
25 Id. at 11:12. 
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to the Investigator supports this narrative. It is an example of another inaccurate or 

false statement by Kimberly. 

• Kimberly’s Opposition states that the $5,000 in the safe deposit box “always 

remained untouched and proof of this was provided to the forensic investigator. . .” 

26 This is entirely false. No proof of the money in the safe deposit was provided to 

the Investigator and still has not been provided to this Court. In fact, the Investigator’s 

second report upon which Kimberly relies does not even mention the safe deposit 

box. It simply states the funds were deposited back into June’s account. Additionally, 

the Investigator’s second report takes no position on whether Kimberly’s actions or 

documentation were appropriate or justified, but simply presents documentation. 

• Kimberly’s Opposition states: “[Gerry] incorrectly assumes that Kimberly did not 

provide an explanation of these amounts.”27 It is quite amazing Kimberly feels 

comfortable making this statement when the Investigator’s first report makes clear 

that Kimberly did not provide the Investigator an adequate explanation. Kimberly 

had months to do so, but upon information and belief ignored most of the 

Investigator’s requests for information. 

• Kimberly’s Opposition states that an “attestation by David Johnson, Esq.” is attached 

as Exhibit 7.28 It is not. 

• Kimberly’s Opposition states: “Gerry resides with Dick Powell. . .”29 This is a false 

statement and both Kimberly and her attorney know as much. Gerry lives in a 

separate house on a separate legal parcel. Additionally, Gerry is willing to move back 

 
26 Id. at 11:17. 
27 Id. at 14:2. 
28 Id. at 13:12. 
29 Id. at 17:25. 
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to the Kraft house with June if Kimberly and her boyfriend were no longer living 

there. 

• Kimberly’s Opposition states in bold print: “[Gerry] has not visited June in months” 

and references Kimberly’s declaration attached as Exhibit 6 in support of the same.30 

However, Kimberly’s declaration does not mention this topic whatsoever. This is 

another example of Kimberly’s pleadings making allegations without any support or 

evidence. 

• Kimberly’s Opposition states: “Gerry’s convenient attempt to question [the powers 

of attorney] in the middle of adversarial litigation is not only questionable – it is proof 

of his bad faith conduct.”31 This is one of the many egregiously false allegations by 

Kimberly and her attorney. While Kimberly’s attorney was not involved at the time 

of the Probate hearing regarding the powers of attorney, it is unquestionably clear he 

is aware of the same. Thus, he is aware that his inflammatory statement is entirely 

false. Concerns were raised about the powers of attorney from essentially the very 

first day these issues were discussed with Kimberly’s first attorney. Kimberly, upon 

advice of counsel, then decided to file a probate court action to determine whether 

the powers of attorney were valid. 

• Kimberly’s Opposition states: “Here, everyone with the exception of [Gerry], his 

daughter, and son-in-law, are in agreement that June’s best interests are being served 

by Kimberly and no additional hearing or discovery is necessary.”32 It is unclear who 

“everyone” can consist of as the only time the Court considered this issue, Robyn and 

Donna aggressively objected to Kimberly being guardian. 

 
30 Id. at 18:12. 
31 Id. at 19:10. 
32 Id. at 20:8. 
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4. Kimberly’s recent Petition to Refinance, filed on May 8, 2020, also raises several 
concerns, along with other ongoing issues. 
 

• The Petition to Refinance seems to indicate that the Anaheim house was refinanced 

in 2003. [The last page of the exhibits shows a maturity date of 2033.] This is years 

before June was married to Gerry, and thus the early allegations by Robyn, Donna 

and Kimberly that Gerry or Dick Powell improperly refinanced the Anaheim house 

are entirely false (as Gerry and Dick have repeatedly stated). See Kimberly’s October 

2, 2019 Opposition at 8:23 wherein she alleges the Anaheim property was recently 

refinanced and that she would be providing documentation related to the same (which 

she has still never done). In Robyn and Donna’s Reply filed on October 14, 2019, 

they also ask questions about a refinance. This is simply another initial allegation by 

Robyn, Donna and Kimberly that is entirely unsubstantiated. 

• The Petition to Refinance also raises additional concerns about Kimberly’s fitness to 

remain as guardian. Why does June now need her Anaheim equity to pay her 

expenses? How did she live for nine years without using such equity? Who was 

subsidizing her expenses before while June rented at a reduced rate to her son Scott? 

(The Investigator’s report indicates that Dick Powell was subsidizing June’s 

expenses.) If Kimberly was truly the power of attorney and aware of June’s 

diminished capacity (as she claims), why did she never step in and demand Scott pay 

more in rent? Why did Scott move out and cease paying $1,200 per month in rent 

prior to Kimberly having funds in place to repair the home, thus leaving the home 

empty and not generating any income for June? Upon information and belief, Scott 

moved out in mid-March, so why did Kimberly wait approximately two months to 

even file the motion requesting a refinance? Why doesn’t Kimberly yet have a loan 

commitment rather than simply the loan estimate (which estimate includes multiple 
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errors, including stating that the home will be owner occupied)? Based upon the 

photos produced in the Motion to Refinance, it appears the home will likely require 

significantly more than $20,000 to repair. This reality, and the other points, seriously 

call into question Kimberly’s ability to properly act as the guardian of June’s estate. 

• The Petition to Refinance indicates June’s ability to currently be involved in making 

decisions regarding her real property. Nonetheless, Kimberly alleges June was unable 

to do so in January 2018 regarding the Kraft property. Gerry and Dick have always 

stated June was competent to make her own decisions, without any involvement of 

her family, in January 2018. If Kimberly believes she is competent now, then she 

clearly would have been competent almost 2.5 years ago. Therefore, there are no 

other allegations against Gerry why he should not be guardian. 

• Kimberly repeatedly argues that June had diminished capacity as far back as 2014. 

However, no documentation has ever been produced evidencing this allegation, and 

now the Motion to Refinance suggests that June still has capacity. This is another 

example of the multitude of unsubstantiated claims made by Kimberly, Robyn and 

Donna throughout this guardianship process. 

• Kimberly’s attorney apparently considers Robyn and Donna to be his clients which 

raises serious concerns about the impartiality of both Kimberly and her attorney. 

Robyn and Donna were replaced as guardians and thus should not be asserting 

controlling influence on Kimberly or her attorney. See Footnote 38 infra. 

5. Ever since the Court appointed Kimberly to be guardian, it has expressed an 
ability and willingness to change June’s guardian if necessary. Sufficient 
evidence exists to make a change now, or discovery and an evidentiary hearing 
should be permitted. 
 

Although the Court chose to make Kimberly June’s guardian, despite the many concerns 

listed above and the lack of any substantiation of the facts, it also noted at the time that it could 
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remove a guardian sua sponte pursuant to SB 20.33 Since that time, the evidence has shown the 

ongoing concerns about Kimberly to be true. As stated, most recently she has taken June’s money 

without adequate explanation and continues to isolate June from her husband, among many other 

concerns that have multiplied since before these proceedings began.  

At a minimum, this evidence, and the allegations associated with it, makes it clear that 

serious questions exist regarding Kimberly’s suitability to be June’s guardian, and whether it is 

in June’s best interest to have Kimberly continue to be her guardian. Gerry believes he is more 

suitable than Kimberly to be June’s guardian, and the Court should either appoint Gerry to be 

June’s guardian now or allow the parties to conduct discovery and have an evidentiary hearing 

to unveil the facts in this matter.  

The Oppositions argue that Gerry should have appealed the original order appointing 

Kimberly as guardian; however, it is very likely the appellate court would have remanded the 

matter back to this Court for further actions as this Court had appointed investigators and 

specifically stated it would review their findings and consider making changes to the 

guardianship. 

This Court made clear that all issues were open to consideration after the investigator’s 

reports, even without any additional petition being filed. This Court also scheduled an 

evidentiary hearing for February 20, 2020. The Court stated on October 15, 2019: 

I’m going to come back in 90 days. At that point in time, SB20 I 
believe allows me sua sponte based on the results of those 
investigations to make any decision on that 90 day date, lacking a 
petition. So I could remove her on that day, I could appoint 
somebody else, I could appoint additional guardians on that day, 
okay? And depending on what’s in that investigation, be ready for 
it. Okay? Or it may be nothing happens on that day about the 
guardian. But I would like you to be here, I would like Kimberly 
to be here on that day, okay, and Counsel to be there on that day.34 

 
33 October 15, 2019 transcript at 74:8-14. 
34 Id. at 74:8. 
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At the hearing on January 14, 2020, the Court made it clear that discovery is open on a 

variety of topics. At that hearing, the Parties never objected to the same, nor sought to limit the 

same. 

 The Court indicated the issues being investigated by the court-appointed investigators 

were the potential topics of an evidentiary hearing, and that such investigations themselves do 

not constitute discovery, by stating: 

I leave the scope of the evidentiary hearing sometimes a little bit 
open because sometimes the investigation brings to light some 
additional concerns. The scope of the evidentiary hearing is laid 
out, the discovery process is open. Working with the investigator 
to give her documents isn’t discovery. (emphasis added)35 

 
The investigators had nothing to do with the dog issues. Therefore, this statement by the Court 

was clearly not intended to leave the scope of discovery limited to the dogs. 

Additionally, also on January 14, 2020, the Court stated:  “Discovery’s open. Discover 

away.”36 

Therefore, at a minimum, this Court should permit discovery and an evidentiary hearing 

to determine whether Gerry or Kimberly is more suitable to be June’s guardian. The arguments 

above demonstrate that Kimberly has not been and will not be a suitable guardian. Further, if the 

Court determines that June’s powers of attorney are valid,37 then it should consider such 

nominations a preferential statement for Kimberly, but not a determinative statement. Before the 

guardianship, no one ever claimed June wanted to live with Kimberly--not June, not Kimberly 

and no one else. Nothing in the initial petitions filed by Robyn, Donna or June make that claim. 

 
35 January 14, 2020 transcript at 9:4-10. 
36 Id. at 18:22. 
37 Discovery, evidence and a ruling on this issue has never occurred. The issue of the validity 
of the powers of attorney was first made by Kimberly in Probate Court and no ruling has ever 
happened. It should be made before this Court determines who is the preferred guardian under 
the statute. 
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The Arizona police report submitted herein states that June expressed she did not want to go with 

Kimberly. It is not beyond comprehension to consider that Kimberly is manipulating June, and 

has done so for over eight months while limiting June’s contact with her spouse by taking away 

June’s cell phone and forcing June to use Kimberly’s cell phone for all of June’s communication. 

Even when June and Gerry were permitted to be together, Kimberly continued to hover over 

them and provided no privacy to them. 

B. The Court Should Further Investigate Kimberly’s Conduct and, if 
Necessary, Order Her to Return June’s Property. 

 
As outlined above, Kimberly still has not accounted for what happened to the 

approximately $5,000.00 she took from June’s account, and she is not permitted to comingle 

June’s funds with her own. Even if she recently placed $5,000.00 into June’s account, that money 

is not necessarily the same money she took from June. In other words, Kimberly may have used 

June’s money for her own purposes and then found another $5,000.00 to return to June after 

being questioned and pressured by the Investigator. The Court should require Kimberly to 

explain what happened to the funds during the intervening months.  

 Kimberly failed to account on the sworn Inventory filed herein for the cash in the safe 

deposit box and did not even account for the existence of the safe deposit box. This seems to fit 

precisely with the concerns expressed in Brown, even though Kimberly returned the funds to 

June upon begin compelled to do so. The various facts discussed as part of this Petition raise 

serious concerns about Kimberly’s fitness to continue as the guardian of June’s estate. 

C. Robyn and Donna Should be Considered Parties Herein and Not Just 
Interested Persons. 

 
The Court should summarily deny the request to determine whether Robyn and Donna 

are parties because they did not make the request themselves. They have filed no supplemental 
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pleading, even though this Court requested they do so. There is no good faith basis for Kimberly 

and June to expend June’s assets to defend Robyn and Donna.38 

The Oppositions fail to cite to any authority indicating that Robyn and Donna are not 

parties herein. The factual reality indicates they are parties. They were the Court-appointed 

temporary guardians and have never been discharged from the same. At what point do they claim 

they were no longer parties, and what did they do to indicate the same? They are now seeking 

$60,000 in attorney fees. Such fee application could not be granted to a non-party. Counsel has 

appeared on their behalf at every hearing and has never withdrawn such appearance. Their 

counsel has actively participated in every hearing and sought relief from the Court at every 

hearing. 

Gerry acknowledges that some interested persons can participate in a guardianship matter 

to a limited extent and not be considered parties. Such would be the case with June’s two other 

children who have each appeared at one hearing, but who Gerry would not consider parties. The 

factual reality indicates that Robyn and Donna are clearly beyond the scope of simply being 

interested persons. 

Gerry could not find anything specifically on point related to when an interested person 

in guardianship constitutes a party or a non-party for discovery purposes. However, Blazek v. 

Capital Recovery Assocs., 222 F.R.D. 360, 361 (Wis. E.D. 2004) discusses the issue of parties 

versus non-parties by analyzing whether a defaulted defendant constitutes a party subject to 

discovery as a party. That court describes certain characteristics of a party by stating: 

 
38 It is interesting to note that one of Mr. Beckstrom’s recent emails included a reference 
seemingly indicating that his clients are Robyn and Donna. If Mr. Beckstrom is representing (or 
has represented) Robyn and Donna in these matters, then he would seem to have a conflict of 
interest in also representing Kimberly and the best interests of June. In particular, if Mr. 
Beckstrom is being paid by Robyn (or her husband), then that would seem to exacerbate any 
conflict of interest. This conflict seems apparent because Mr. Beckstrom, on behalf of Kimberly, 
is seeking relief for the benefit of Robyn and Donna. 
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Under the federal rules, a defaulting defendant loses many of the 
rights of a party, such as the right to receive notice of future 
proceedings (except when the defendant has appeared in the 
action), the right to present evidence on issues other than 
unliquidated damages, and the right to contest the factual 
allegations in the complaint. Thus, by defaulting, a defendant can 
reasonably be regarded as having given up most of the benefits 
that status as a party confers. 
 

The Ninth Circuit cited Blazek favorably in Jules Jordan Video, Inc. v. 144942 Canada 

Inc., 617 F.3d 1146, 1159 (9th Cir. 2010) by stating: 

We agree with the Blazek court’s analysis, however, that a 
defaulted defendant should be treated as a nonparty. As the court 
in Blazek noted, a defaulted defendant loses many of the rights of 
a party, chief among them the right to contest the factual 
allegations of the complaint. 
 

 Even Kimberly’s Opposition states:  “NRCP 26 makes clear that discovery is allowed 

(and intended) only when a party seeks to advance a claim or defense.”39 Robyn and Donna have 

repeatedly sought to advance their claims and defenses, both in filed pleadings and in oral 

arguments. 

 June’s Opposition states: “An interested person may become a party to a litigation upon 

making an objection or by asking the Court to take a certain action but there must be some 

limitation to an ‘Interested person’s’ ability to drive litigation in a guardianship matter.”40 This 

statement weighs in favor of Robyn and Donna being considered parties as they have actively 

objected to matters, asked the Court to take certain actions throughout this guardianship, and are 

attempting to drive this guardianship litigation. 

 June’s Opposition amazingly (and mistakenly) argues that Gerry, as the spouse of June, 

is not even an interested person in June’s guardianship.41 June’s Opposition then goes on to 

 
39 Id. at 22:16. 
40 June’s Opposition at 4:13. 
41 Id. at 3:16. 
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misquote NRS 159.034(1) by excluding the first three words of the statue which are “The spouse 

of . . .” Therefore, June’s Opposition turns the statute from listing Gerry as the first priority to 

entirely excluding Gerry from any consideration at all. Even with an inadvertent cut and copy of 

the statute it is difficult to imagine how anyone could conceive of a spouse not being an interested 

person in their own spouse’s guardianship, and yet that is what June’s Opposition argues in 

addition to misquoting the statute. Perhaps this egregious misunderstanding is why June’s 

interests in her relationship with her spouse have been essentially ignored by everyone else in 

this matter. 

In the current case, Robyn and Donna regularly demand the benefits of a party by 

attending all hearings, sitting at counsel’s table, filing pleadings on virtually every issue, and 

seeking relief from the Court at virtually every hearing. For example, in addition to all the 

pleadings filed by Robyn and Donna herein, their attorney has made the following affirmative 

requests at the hearings herein:   

• On October 3rd, Mr. Michaelson objected to Kimberly’s boyfriend speaking and 

referred to his clients as parties.42  

• On October 3rd, Mr. Michaelson objected to June’s daughter Terri speaking 

because she had not filed in the case yet.43 Robyn and Donna have never 

withdrawn their appearance herein and continue to take actions as if they are 

parties. 

• On October 15th, even after Robyn and Donna were removed as temporary 

guardians, Mr. Michaelson continued to request relief on their behalf.44   

 
42 October 3, 2019 transcript at 25:16. 
43 Id. at 27:24. 
44 October 15, 2019 transcript at 87:13, 91:9, 96:1 and 97:22. 
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• On December 10th, even after Robyn and Donna were removed as temporary 

guardians, Mr. Michaelson continued to request relief on their behalf.45   

• On January 14th, even after Robyn and Donna were removed as temporary 

guardians, Mr. Michaelson continued to request relief on their behalf.46 In 

connection with their Motion for Protective Order filed herein, Robyn and Donna 

suggested that the topics of discovery help determine who should be considered 

a party for discovery purposes. While they provide no legal authority for such 

argument, even if it were true it would support the argument that they are parties. 

Robyn and Donna came to this Court seeking to be appointed Temporary 

Guardians. In that attempt, they made multiple allegations about Kimberly’s lack 

of fitness to serve as guardian. This lack of fitness is precisely what Gerry’s 

current Petition is about. Therefore, Robyn and Donna submitted themselves to 

the jurisdiction of this Court regarding the issues of who would be the most 

suitable guardian for June. They cannot now slink away claiming they are not 

parties subject to discovery. 

D. An Award of Attorney Fees is Not Proper. 
 
Kimberly’s Opposition includes a counterpetition for attorney fees and costs pursuant to 

NRS 159.1583(4). This statute does not exist but is referenced repeatedly throughout Kimberly’s 

Opposition. Presumably, Kimberly’s Opposition intends to refer to NRS 159.1853(4). What 

Kimberly’s Opposition misses is the timing of reports by the Investigator. The Investigator’s 

first report was filed March 13, 2020 at which time the Investigator had not received the 

requested documentation from Kimberly regarding the expenses. Gerry filed the Petition to 

 
45 December 10, 2019 transcript at 34:11 and 36:17. 
46 January 14, 2020 transcript at 5:21, 12:14, 20:16, 25:17, 29:5 and 31:5. 
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Remove and the Petition to Recover on April 14, 2020, based upon the Investigator’s first report. 

Then on April 20, 2020, the Investigator filed a second report which includes documentation 

from Kimberly which answers some, but not all, questions about the funds taken from June by 

Kimberly. Kimberly’s Opposition wrongfully infers the Investigator’s second report existed 

prior to Gerry filing the Petition. Therefore, Gerry’s Petition was entirely appropriate at the time 

of filing and remains appropriate because of the continuing questions and concerns outlined 

above. To argue that Gerry’s Petition is frivolous or improper in any way is incorrect and, 

frankly, in bad faith given the timing of events and facts of the case. 

E. The Court Should Allow the Parties to Continue Discovery and Hold an 
Evidentiary Hearing. 

 
Gerry believes that the evidence presented is sufficient cause to remove Kimberly as 

guardian and appoint him as guardian of the person and a neutral party as guardian of the estate; 

however, if the Court does not believe the evidence is sufficient, then Gerry urges the Court to 

allow the Parties to continue the discovery process to help untangle the many disputed facts that 

exist now and have continued to arise from the beginning of this matter. Indeed, on October 15, 

2019, the Court set an evidentiary hearing for February 20, 2020 to review the status of the 

guardianship based on the Investigator’s anticipated report. Now that we have the Investigator’s 

reports, which raise many concerns, discovery and an evidentiary hearing would be extremely 

helpful, if not vital, to help determine precisely what has happened and who is currently the most 

qualified, suitable person to be June’s guardian and act in her best interests.  

Finally, as the Court knows, this case has been highly contentious with many allegations 

of inappropriate conduct from all parties. The Court has not had the opportunity to review much 

actual evidence because it has had to rely primarily on the statements of counsel, which is not 

evidence. In a contentious, complex matter like this one, discovery and an evidentiary hearing 

are typically undertaken as a matter of course and should occur here. If the Court hears the actual 
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evidence applicable to June and her circumstances, then it will be able to make a fully informed 

decision and all parties involved will feel they have been involved in a fair process and that they 

have had an opportunity to be heard sufficiently. A fair and thorough process, regardless of the 

outcome, will likely help the parties work more cooperatively. 

CONCLUSION 

Kimberly is not qualified or suitable to be June’s guardian and has not acted in her best 

interests. The Investigator recently found she withdrew money from June’s bank accounts 

without adequately accounting for it, even though she has now deposited the same amount of 

money into June’s account. Many other serious questions regarding Kimberly’s conduct 

regarding June continue to persist. Gerry, June’s husband of ten years, is qualified, suitable, and 

willing to serve as guardian of June’s person. He has acted in her best interests throughout their 

marriage and will continue to do so. The Court should appoint him to be the guardian of June’s 

person and replace Kimberly with a neutral guardian of June’s estate. 

If the Court is not comfortable removing Kimberly immediately, then the Court should 

permit discovery and an evidentiary hearing regarding the same, and regarding the funds 

Kimberly withdrew from June’s accounts, including by requiring Kimberly to testify under oath 

regarding the withdrawals. 

Dated this 13th day of May, 2020.   
GHANDI DEETER BLACKHAM 

       /s/ Laura A. Deeter                      
       Laura A. Deeter, Esq. 
 

 
VERIFICATION 

 
 I, Rodney Gerald Yeoman, hereby declare I am the husband of Kathleen June Jones; 

that I have read the foregoing Reply to Oppositions to Petition for Removal of Guardian and 

for Return of Protected Person’s Property and know the contents thereof; that the same are true 
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KEHOE & ASSOCIATES
TY E. KEHOE, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 006011 
871 Coronado Center Drive, Suite 200 
Henderson, Nevada 89052 
Telephone: (702) 837-1908 
Facsimile: (702) 837-1932 
TyKehoeLaw@gmail.com

  Matthew C. Piccolo, Esq.
  Nevada Bar No. 14331 

PICCOLO LAW OFFICES
  8565 S Eastern Ave Ste 150  
  Las Vegas, NV 89123 
  Tel: (702) 749-3699 
  Fax: (702) 944-6630 

matt@piccololawoffices.com

 Attorneys for Rodney Gerald Yeoman 

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

In the matter of the Guardianship of the Person 
and Estate of:

KATHLEEN JUNE JONES,

 Adult Protected Person. 

   Case No.:     G-19-052263-A
Dept. No:     B

Date:  May 20, 2020 
Time:  9:00 a.m. 

REPLY TO ROBYN FRIEDMAN’S AND DONNA SIMMONS’ OPPOSITION RE 
PETITION FOR REMOVAL OF GUARDIAN AND FOR RETURN OF PROTECTED 

PERSON’S PROPERTY
AND

OPPOSITION TO PETITION FOR SANCTIONS

Rodney Gerald Yeoman (“Gerry”), husband of the Protected Person Kathleen June Jones 

(“June”), by and through his counsel of record, submits this Reply to Robyn Friedman’s and 
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Donna Simmons’ Opposition to Petition for Removal of Guardian pursuant to NRS 159.185 

and 159.1853 and for Return of Protected Person’s Property pursuant to NRS 159.305, and 

Opposition to Petition for Sanctions. 

The Joinder and Counterpetition should be stricken.

The Joinder and Counterpetition are extremely late and should be stricken by this Court.

An opposition is due 14 days from service of a motion.1 The Petition was filed herein on April 

14th, and the Joinder was not filed until 30 days later. Specific authority was not found for a 

joinder in an opposition, however a joinder in a motion is required to be done within 7 days of 

a motion being filed.2 Here, Kimberly filed her opposition on April 27th; thus, any joinder would 

be due no later than May 4th. The Joinder was not filed until May 14th. Not even a reply brief is 

supposed to be filed within 7 days of the scheduled hearing3, and the Joinder was filed only 6 

days before the scheduled hearing. Additionally, the late filing now necessitates not only a late 

reply brief4, but also necessitates expenditure of additional resources in preparing a second reply 

brief. Finally, the Joinder includes a reply to Gerry’s Reply Brief which is not a permissible 

pleading in the rules. Therefore, the Joinder and Counterpetition should be stricken and ignored.

Additionally, it is unclear why Robyn and Donna felt compelled to file anything at all.

Both the guardian herein and the protected person already opposed Gerry’s Petition. Robyn and 

Donna claim they are not parties nor seeking affirmative relief, and yet they once again file a 

significant pleading herein unnecessarily increasing paperwork, wasting resources, and 

specifically requesting affirmative relief.

1 EDCR 2.20. 
2 Id.
3 Id.
4 To the extent necessary, Gerry requests the right to file this late reply brief pursuant to EDCR 
2.20.
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If not stricken, the Joinder and Counterpetition should be treated similarly to Kimberly’s 

Opposition and Counterpetition, and the arguments made in Gerry’s Reply Brief filed on May 

13, 2020 are incorporated herein by reference. 

Unsubstantiated and false allegations by Robyn and Donna. 

As has become common in this guardianship, nearly every single factual allegation made 

by Robyn and Donna are both unsubstantiated and false. Additionally, most of the allegations 

made in the Joinder about Gerry, were actually directed against Kimberly at the beginning of 

this guardianship. Robyn and Donna are both two-faced and opportunistic in their making of 

allegations.

Just one example of the many extreme and ridiculous allegations is related to alleged 

withholding of the identification and medication of June. June was wrongly taken from her 

husband on Saturday, September 7, 2019. Gerry did not even know where his wife was for a 

couple of days. He also strongly opposed the taking of his wife and therefore if he ever desired 

to be difficult with Kimberly this would have been the perfect time. However, Gerry loves and 

cares for his wife, and so as soon as it was discovered where she was and the identification and 

medication were requested, they were immediately turned over on Wednesday September 11, 

2019. A photo of the items that were turned over is attached hereto as Exhibit A. These items 

were turned over to Kimberly, who had June at that time. This occurred long before Robyn and 

Donna’s actions in connection with any guardianship. Robyn and Donna have been repeatedly 

informed about the identification and medication, but nonetheless continue to make the 

inflammatory, unsubstantiated, and patently false allegation even eight months later. 

These types of allegations have been made against Gerry from the beginning of this 

case, but Gerry has never been given an opportunity to conduct discovery and have an 

evidentiary hearing related to the same. It is not reasonable for the allegations of Kimberly, 

Robyn, and Donna to be accepted as factually accurate without any supporting evidence and an 
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opportunity for cross-examination, especially when such acceptance results in the breakdown 

of a long-term loving and caring marriage. 

Robyn alleges the dogs were better groomed than June5, and yet during litigation

regarding the dogs it was alleged that June cared for the dogs. Robyn and Donna cannot keep 

their stories straight because most of them are just that: stories.

Amazingly, Robyn alleges that Gerry is the one that wanted to keep June in her home6,

and yet it is undisputed that Robyn refused to provide the financial means for June to travel. 

Nonetheless, through the assistance of Dick Powell, Gerry and June traveled all over the United 

States, as well as to Canada and Mexico. Robyn well knows these facts, and yet states otherwise 

to the Court. 

There has also never been any evidence provided of how often Robyn or Donna saw 

June before the guardianship, nor how often they are seeing June since the guardianship.

Therefore, Robyn’s statement about June’s appearance7 should be subject to further evidence 

and cross-examination. 

The Joinder states:  “Kimberly provided receipts showing that $5,000 was deposited 

back into the [sic] Ms. Jones’ account after expenses. . .”8 However, there has never been any 

allegation of expenses being deducted in connection with the approximately $5,000 taken by 

Kimberly. This error evidences Robyn and Donna’s fundamental misunderstanding of facts 

throughout this process, followed by the attendant misrepresentation of facts to the Court. 

The Joinder states: “. . . there would have been no legal impediment to Kimberly 

utilizing the money to fend of [sic] Mr. Yeoman’s attacks on Ms. Jones’ POA’s [sic].”9

5 Joinder at 6:10. 
6 Id. at 6:17. 
7 Id. at 6:8. 
8 Id. at 6:25. 
9 Id. at 7:5. 
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Although Gerry disagrees with this claim, he nonetheless points out that there would have been 

no legal impediment to June doing anything she wanted with her Kraft property in January 

2018; no legal impediment to June traveling out of state with her husband without permission 

of her adult children; and it was not Gerry that attacked the powers of attorney but it was 

Kimberly’s decision to go to court to determine whether the powers of attorney were valid. 

The suggestion that June was not permitted to travel out of state without permission of 

Kimberly as the purported power of attorney is preposterous. All of June’s children were aware 

of June traveling all over the United States, and also to Mexico and Canada. They never claimed 

June was not permitted to travel outside of Nevada.

The claims for vexatious litigant sanctions should be denied.

The requests regarding vexatious litigant sanctions are entirely frivolous and should be 

subject to Rule 11 sanctions themselves. Not even the guardian or the protected person are 

claiming Gerry is a vexatious litigant. Arguably, Robyn and Donna do not even have standing 

to make these claims on behalf of the guardianship estate as June is adequately represented by 

the guardian and her counsel, as well as by June’s own counsel. 

Additionally, a husband filing an opposition to a petition seeking guardianship of his 

spouse10 is not a vexatious pleading, and neither is disputing a draft order from a hearing11. The 

issues regarding the dogs were resolved via stipulation with no admission of wrongdoing by 

either side, and each side agreeing to bear their own attorney fees and costs. Robyn and Donna 

were not even parties to the stipulation regarding the dogs. Therefore, again, they are pursuing 

litigation that is entirely unnecessary and unfounded. There is not a single inappropriate pleading 

filed by Gerry, let alone multiple pleadings as required by NRS 159.0486. 

10 Id. at 10:2. 
11 Id. at 10:8. 
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Regarding the dog issues, which are fully resolved by stipulation and therefore a waste 

of time for Robyn and Donna to be raising, the Joinder states:  “Despite the dog issue being 

resolved, on January 20, 2020, counsel for Mr. Yeoman served counsel for Robyn and Donna 

[discovery].”12 This evidences another blatant misstatement of the facts of this case. The dog 

issues were not resolved on January 20th when the discovery was served. That was part of the 

purpose of the discovery requests. The stipulation regarding the dogs was not executed by Gerry 

until February 1st. 

Paragraph 27 of the Joinder claims that on April 14, 2020 when the Petition to Remove 

was filed by Gerry there were “unfounded allegations of misappropriation of funds by Kimberly. 

. .”13 This is another blatant misstatement by Robyn and Donna. On April 14, 2020, the 

Investigator had filed only her first report, which raises the concerns about the money taken by 

Kimberly. No documentation regarding these concerns was provided by the Investigator until 

the supplemental report was filed on April 20th, after the current Petition. And, even the 

supplemental report leaves many unanswered questions. 

Robyn and Donna are clearly parties herein.

 Robyn and Donna are clearly parties herein, as explained in Gerry’s Reply.  

Without any legal support, the Joinder argues: “[t]he termination of Robyn and Donna as 

temporary guardians is tantamount to a dismissal of them from the guardianship action. . .”14,

and then provides legal authority for a dismissed party not being subject to discovery as a party. 

While it goes without saying that a non-party is not subject to discovery as a party, the Joinder 

ignores that Robyn and Donna currently have a petition to discharge them as temporary 

guardians. Therefore, even under their strained theory of the law they have not been “dismissed.”

12 Id. at 11:5. 
13 Id. at 12:4. 
14 Id. at 13:21. 
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Additionally, they ignore their continuing actions as a party herein. Contrary to their 

statement that “they seek no affirmative relief from this Court at this time,”15 they currently have 

pending four different petitions for relief:  they are seeking over $60,000 in attorney fees; they 

are seeking to be discharged as temporary guardians; they are seeking sanctions in their Joinder; 

and they are seeking relief related to Kimberly’s Petition to Refinance.

Conclusion.

If Kimberly is removed for misappropriation or any other reason, then the Court will 

need to appoint a new guardian. Gerry is statutorily preferred over any other person. If the Court 

decides against appointing Gerry, then it can appoint a neutral guardian. 

This Court should remove Kimberly as June’s guardian, or at least permit discovery and 

an evidentiary hearing if the Court is not willing to immediately make such replacement.

Additionally, the Court should deny the claim for sanctions by Robyn and Donna and should 

grant sanctions to Gerry against Robyn and Donna based on their improper Joinder and 

Counterpetition.

Dated this 18th day of May, 2020.  GHANDI DEETER BLACKHAM
       /s/ Laura A. Deeter                    

       Laura A. Deeter, Esq. 

15 Id. at 13:19. 
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GHANDI DEETER BLACKHAM 
Laura A. Deeter, Esq. 
Nevada Bar No. 10562 
725 S. 8th Street, Suite 100 
Las Vegas, Nevada  89101 
Telephone:  (702) 878-1115 
Facsimile: (702) 979-2485 
laura@ghandilaw.com 
 
KEHOE & ASSOCIATES 
TY E. KEHOE, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 006011 
871 Coronado Center Drive, Suite 200 
Henderson, Nevada 89052 
Telephone: (702) 837-1908 
Facsimile: (702) 837-1932 
TyKehoeLaw@gmail.com 

 
  Matthew C. Piccolo, Esq. 
  Nevada Bar No. 14331 
  PICCOLO LAW OFFICES 
  8565 S Eastern Ave Ste 150  
  Las Vegas, NV 89123 
  Tel: (702) 749-3699 
  Fax: (702) 944-6630 
  matt@piccololawoffices.com 
 
 Attorneys for Rodney Gerald Yeoman 
 

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 
FAMILY DIVISION 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 
 
 
In the matter of the Guardianship of the Person 
and Estate of: 
 
 KATHLEEN JUNE JONES, 
 
  Adult Protected Person. 
 

             
   Case No.:     G-19-052263-A 
   Dept. No:     B 
 
   Date:  May 20, 2020 (OST) 
   Time:  9:00 a.m. (OST) 

 
RESPONSE TO PETITION FOR APPROVAL TO REFINANCE REAL PROPERTY 

OF THE PROTECTED PERSON 
 
 Rodney Gerald Yeoman (“Gerry”), husband of the Protected Person Kathleen June Jones 

(“June”), by and through his counsel of record, submits this Response to Petition for Approval 

to Refinance Real Property of the Protected Person. 

Case Number: G-19-052263-A

Electronically Filed
5/18/2020 8:36 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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 Gerry does not object to refinancing the Anaheim property, as it does not make sense 

for the home to sit empty any longer, and it clearly cannot be rented to a new tenant in its current 

condition; however, he has significant concerns regarding Kimberly’s proposed process for 

accomplishing the refinance and remodel, along with concerns about the information that has 

been presented to the Court so far. Surprisingly, Gerry agrees with Robyn and Donna on many 

of these issues, and shares many of the same concerns raised by Robyn and Donna in their 

Joinder to the Petition to Refinance filed herein on May 14, 2020. 

Concerns about the Petition to Refinance. 

The Petition to Refinance seeks $20,000 to repair and remodel the Anaheim house. 

However, the Petition includes no specifics regarding how the $20,000 will be used, nor any 

confirmation the $20,000 is adequate to complete the necessary repairs and remodeling. If 

$20,000 (or even $37,000) proves to be inadequate, then the guardian will need to seek an 

additional refinance, which will cost June’s estate several thousand dollars more. Therefore, as 

also requested by Robyn and Donna, a specific work estimate from a licensed contractor should 

be provided. 

Gerry also objects, like Robyn and Donna, to Kimberly’s boyfriend Dean completing the 

work on the Anaheim home. Kimberly should not be in a position to approve payments to her 

boyfriend out of June’s estate. The failure by Kimberly to include this information in the Petition 

to Refinance is very concerning. 

If only $20,000 is used for repairs and remodeling, then the guardian should be required 

to account more specifically for why an additional $17,000 is being sought from June’s 

refinance, and for what purpose such funds will be used. With Kimberly living with June, and 

possibly receiving financial support from June, there is a potential conflict of interest in 

Kimberly seeking additional cash funds from June’s assets. 
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The Petition to Refinance should also state how long it will take before cash can be 

received from the refinance, and also explain how June will meet her expenses in the meantime. 

Exhibit 3 to the Petition to Refinance, which is the Loan Detail & Fee Worksheet, shows 

an anticipated interest rate of 3.5%. However, according to the same document, this interest rate 

is for an “owner occupied” loan. June will not be occupying this property. Therefore, the interest 

rate will be higher, thus calling into question the Petition’s basic premise that June will save 

money based upon refinancing to a lower interest rate.  

The same exhibit shows a cost of almost $5,000 to obtain the refinance. It may be 

necessary to refinance the Anaheim home to obtain funds to make the Anaheim property 

habitable regardless of the expense for the refinance; however, the expense should be considered 

as decisions are made. 

The same exhibit appears to be a very preliminary document. It is unclear whether this is 

an actual loan commitment, and thus it is unclear whether June has qualified for a loan or even 

could qualify. The Petitioner should answer these questions. 

The Petition does not explain why June’s son left the Anaheim property in such a 

deplorable condition, especially after paying for years only 50% of the market rental rate. Does 

Kimberly plan to seek any reimbursement from Scott? 

Upon information provided by June to Gerry, Scott moved out of the Anaheim home in 

March 2020. Therefore, Kimberly should explain why the home sat empty and why the Petition 

to Refinance is only now being filed? 

 It is unclear whether the valuation of the Anaheim home will become relevant based upon 

such a low loan-to-value percentage; however, it is almost certain the Anaheim home, in the 

condition evidenced by the photos, is not worth the value attributed by Zillow.  Robyn and Donna 

have requested a formal appraisal. 

 NRS 159.121 requires the Court to: 
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. . . prescribe the maximum amount of each loan, the maximum 
rate of interest and the date of final maturity of each loan, and may 
authorize the guardian to secure any loan by mortgage, deed of 
trust, pledge or other security transaction authorized by the laws 
of this state. 
 

The current Petition does not pray for any specific interest rate. And, as stated above, it is very 

unlikely for the quoted owner-occupied rate to be approved by a lender. A maximum interest 

rate must be presented for consideration by the Court.  If the maximum rate is 3.5%, then that 

amount should be specified in the Order. 

 Additionally, the statute requires a loan “authorized by the laws of this state.” It is unclear 

whether the order entered by this court will be acceptable to a California title company for 

closing purposes. 

Robyn and Donna joined in the Petition to Refinance and stated:  “upon information and 

belief, [June] receives approximately $1,200 per month in social security.” This is another 

misstatement by Robyn and Donna. The Budget filed herein clearly shows Social Security 

income of $1,536 per month. Therefore, they could have simply verified this number rather than 

making a misstatement based upon “information and belief.” 

Issues raised by the Petition to Refinance related to Gerry’s Petition to Remove Kimberly. 

Additionally, the Motion to Refinance raises many issues that are relevant to the Petition 

to Remove Kimberly currently pending before this Court. 

The Petition to Refinance indicates June’s ability to currently be involved in making 

decisions regarding her real property. Nonetheless, Kimberly alleges June was unable to do so 

in January 2018 regarding the Kraft property. Gerry and Dick have always stated June was 

competent to make her own decisions in January 2018, without any involvement of her family. 

If Kimberly believes she is competent now, then she clearly would have been competent almost 

2.5 years ago. Therefore, there are no other material allegations against Gerry which they claim 

would prevent him from being a suitable guardian. 
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The Petition to Refinance seems to indicate the Anaheim house was refinanced in 2003. 

(The last page of the exhibits shows a maturity date of 2033.) This is years before June was 

married to Gerry, and thus the early allegations by Robyn, Donna and Kimberly that Gerry or 

Dick Powell improperly refinanced the Anaheim house are entirely false (as Gerry and Dick 

have repeatedly stated). See Kimberly’s October 2, 2019 Opposition at 8:23 wherein she alleges 

the Anaheim property was recently refinanced and that she would be providing documentation 

related to the same (which she has still never done). In Robyn and Donna’s Reply filed on 

October 14, 2019, they also ask questions about a refinance. This is simply another initial 

allegation by Robyn, Donna, and Kimberly that is entirely unsubstantiated. 

The Petition to Refinance also raises concerns about Kimberly’s fitness to remain as 

guardian. Why does June now need her Anaheim equity to pay her expenses? How did she live 

for nine years without using such equity? Who was subsidizing her expenses before while June 

rented at a reduced rate to her son Scott? (The Investigator’s report indicates that Dick Powell 

was subsidizing June’s expenses.) If Kimberly was truly the power of attorney and aware of 

June’s diminished capacity (as she claims), why did she never step in and demand Scott pay 

more in rent? Why did Scott move out and cease paying $1,200 per month in rent prior to 

Kimberly having funds in place to repair the home, thus leaving the home empty and not 

generating any income for June? Upon information and belief, Scott moved out in mid-March, 

so why did Kimberly wait approximately two months to even file the motion requesting a 

refinance? Why doesn’t Kimberly yet have a loan commitment rather than simply the loan 

estimate (which estimate includes multiple errors, including stating that the home will be owner 

occupied)? Based upon the photos produced in the Motion to Refinance, it appears the home will 

likely require significantly more than $20,000 to repair. This reality, and the other points, 

seriously call into question Kimberly’s ability to properly act as the guardian of June’s estate. 
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Kimberly repeatedly argues that June had diminished capacity as far back as 2014. 

However, no documentation has ever been produced evidencing this allegation, and now the 

Motion to Refinance suggests June still has capacity. This is another example of the multitude 

of unsubstantiated claims made by Kimberly, Robyn and Donna throughout this guardianship 

process. 

Conclusion. 

 While it is clear the Anaheim home needs to be repaired and remodeled to allow it to be 

rented out and not sit empty, it is entirely unclear that Kimberly is capable of properly 

accomplishing the same. She appears to have conflicts of interest in making these decisions, and 

she appears to lack the competence to properly accomplish this for the best interests of June.  

And based upon Robyn and Donna’s joinder, it is not just Gerry that has concerns about 

Kimberly’s actions and inactions. 

Dated this 18th day of May, 2020.  GHANDI DEETER BLACKHAM 
       /s/ Laura A. Deeter                      

       Laura A. Deeter, Esq. 
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

G-19-052263-A

Guardianship of Adult May 20, 2020COURT MINUTES

G-19-052263-A In the Matter of the Guardianship of:
Kathleen Jones, Protected Person(s)

May 20, 2020 09:00 AM All Pending Motions

HEARD BY: 

COURT CLERK:

COURTROOM: Marquis, Linda

Christensen, Karen; Stengel, Tanya

RJC Courtroom 10A

JOURNAL ENTRIES

CITATION REGARDING PETITION FOR REMOVAL OF GUARDIAN AND FOR RETURN OF 
PROTECTED PERSON'S PROPERTY... KIMBERLY JONES' OPPOSITION TO RODNEY GERALD 
YEOMAN'S PETITION FOR REMOVAL OF GUARDIAN AND FOR RETURN OF PROTECTED 
PERSON'S PROPERTY AND COUNTERPETITION FOR ATTORNEY FEES AND COSTS 
PURSUANT TO NRS 159.1583(4) AND COURT ORDERED SUPPLEMENTAL OPPOSITION 
CONCERNING DISCOVERY OF INTERESTED PARTIES PURSUANT TO NRS 159.047... 
HEARING REGARDING REPLY TO OPPOSITIONS REGARDING PETITION FOR REMOVAL OF 
GUARDIAN AND FOR RETURN OF PROTECTED PERSON'S PROPERTY...HEARING 
REGARDING REPLY TO ROBYN FRIEDMAN'S AND DONNA SIMMONS' OPPOSITION 
REGARDING PETITION FOR REMOVAL OF GUARDIAN AND FOR RETURN OF PROTECTED 
PERSON'S PROPERTY AND OPPOSITION TO PETITION FOR SANCTIONS... PETITION FOR 
APPROVAL REGARDING REFINANCE REAL PROPERTY OF THE PROTECTED PERSON... 
HEARING REGARDING RESPONSE TO PETITION FOR APPROVAL TO REFINANCE REAL 
PROPERTY OF THE PROTECTED PERSON

Court Clerks: Karen Christensen, Tanya Stengel (ts)

All parties appeared via BlueJeans.

PARTIES PRESENT:

Robyn Friedman, Petitioner, Temporary Guardian, 
Present

Jeffrey   R Sylvester, Attorney, Present

John   P. Michaelson, Attorney, Present

Kathleen June Jones, Protected Person, Not 
Present

Maria L. Parra-Sandoval, Attorney, Present

Donna Simmons, Petitioner, Temporary Guardian, 
Present

Jeffrey   R Sylvester, Attorney, Present

John   P. Michaelson, Attorney, Present

Rodney Gerald Yeoman, Other, Present Laura A Deeter, Attorney, Present

Matthew C. Piccolo, Attorney, Present

Ty   E. Kehoe, Attorney, Present

Kimberly Jones, Guardian of Person and Estate, 
Other, Present

James A. Beckstrom, Attorney, Present

State Guardianship Compliance Officer, Agency, 
Not Present

Richard Powell, Other, Not Present Pro Se
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Court and Counsel engaged in discussion regarding the Petition to Remove Guardian.

Attorney Parra-Sandoval stated they filed a Joinder to Kimberly Jones' Opposition; Protected Person 
has not changed her preferences on this matter and still wants Kimberly to remain as her Guardian.

Attorney Michaelson stated they do not agree that Kimberly should be removed as Guardian.

Attorney Beckstrom stated they filed an Opposition to the Petition and further stated the allegations 
are false. Attorney Beckstrom stated the Investigator found no wrong doings; all other issues were 
previously addressed by the Court and denied. Attorney Beckstrom further stated the Petition has no 
merit and stated Mr. Yeoman would not be a suitable Guardian.

Attorney Deeter stated the Guardian removed $5,000.00 and only put it back when it was found 
through the investigation. Attorney Deeter made further statements regarding the safety deposit box 
not being listed on the inventory, the refinance Petition, the Guardian not properly managing the 
estate, and the Guardian not being suitable. Attorney Deeter stated the matter should be set for 
Evidentiary Hearing. Attorney Deeter further stated Mr. Yeoman had everything taken away from him 
and is fighting to be in Protected Person's life and only wants her interests protected.

Attorney Kehoe stated concerns about the late filing of the Joinder and further stated the signature 
blocks were not signed by Robyn or Donna. Attorney Kehoe further stated concerns regarding 
Kimberly not adequately sharing information as previously Ordered by the Court. Attorney Kehoe 
made further statements regarding Kimberly's suitability as Guardian.

Court, Counsel, and parties engaged in discussion regarding the Petition for Approval to Refinance 
Real Property.

Court noted concerns regarding the $20,000.00 estimate and inquired whether or not Kimberly's 
boyfriend, Dean, is a Licensed Contractor. Court further inquired whether or not the estimated cost is 
appropriate and reasonable for the renovations. Court stated all parties agree there should be a 
refinance and the property requires renovation.

Attorney Beckstrom stated it has been difficult to get estimates and exact interest rates right now but 
they put together the best one they could from a loan company. Attorney Beckstrom further stated 
Dean has an extensive background in construction and would be doing the work at no cost; the 
estimate is for purchasing materials only. Attorney Beckstrom further stated Protected Person is out 
of money and costs are a major concern; Protected Person trusts Dean and wants him to do the 
work on the home.

Attorney Parra-Sandoval stated Protected Person is not opposing the refinance and supports 
Kimberly's actions. Attorney Parra-Sandoval further stated there should not be any unnecessary 
restrictions imposed on Kimberly to renovate the house and Protected Person wants Dean to help 
with it.

Court reviewed the damages and repairs and stated based on the pictures, some repairs may 
require a Licensed Professional to do some of the work.

Attorney Michaelson made statements regarding an inspection being absolutely necessary.

Kimberly made statements regarding her not being opposed to calling in a Plumber or a 
Professional. Kimberly stated it is a basic remodel and requested the Court not put her in a position 
of responsibility and then tie her hands.

Attorney Deeter stated she agrees with Attorney Michaelson's clients and made statements 
regarding the liability of the estate if something were to happen. Attorney Deeter stated a Licensed 
Contractor needs to complete the work so the estate is not sued.
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Court noted concerns with the proposed plan or lack of plan for the remodel. Court noted the 
concern is not regarding Dean painting the walls but stated this is more than a simple remodel as 
there are missing appliances, structural issues, and holes going to the outside of the house. Court 
stated it does not want to micro-manage the remodel but Professionals need to be used where 
Professionals are required.

Court suggested an Inspector go into the home and identify the issues/repairs that need to be done, 
which would offer all parties a roadmap of what needs to be done to move forward. Court suggested 
parties then come up with a plan on what items require a Professional and what items can be done 
by Dean.

Upon inquiry from the Court, Counsel stated no objections.

Attorney Michaelson requested the Inspector and/or Professional Contractors hired have no relation 
to Kimberly.

Court and Counsel engaged in discussion regarding having a Licensed Contractor versus a 
Licensed Inspector go into the home. Court stated an Inspector does not have a financial interest but 
a Contractor would have an interest in the outcome.

Attorney Kehoe made statements regarding the statute requiring setting a maximum interest rate on 
the refinancing. 

Court and Counsel engaged in discussion regarding the interest rate.

Attorney Beckstrom requested the Court to approve 3.5% interest rate. 

Attorney Kehoe requested the interest rate be set at 6%.

Upon inquiry from the Court, there were no objections to setting the interest rate at 6%.

Court informed Counsel that the Petition for Fees, Removal of Temporary Guardians, and the 
interested parties issues are being addressed in the Written Order.

Attorney Kehoe informed the Court that Guardian no longer wanted the male dog and he is now in 
the possession of Mr. Yeoman. Attorney Kehoe wanted to clarify that this was permanent possession 
and ownership. Court advised Attorney Kehoe to submit a Stipulation and Order.

COURT ORDERED, the following:

Petition for Removal of Guardian and for Return of Protected Person's Property shall be DENIED. 
Attorney Beckstrom shall prepare and submit an Order electronically.

Countermotion for Sanctions shall be DENIED. Attorney Beckstrom shall prepare and submit an 
Order electronically.

Petition for Approval to Refinance Real Property of the Protected Person shall be GRANTED IN 
PART.

An INSPECTOR from CALIFORNIA shall be allowed to inspect the home and identify all of the 
issues. The final report shall be sent to the Court for review. Court will provide a copy to Counsel if 
necessary.

All work required to be completed by a Licensed Professional shall be completed by a Licensed 
Professional. 
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Kimberly's boyfriend, Dean shall be allowed to complete work, NOT REQUIRED by a Licensed 
Professional, AT NO COST to the Estate EXCEPT for Materials. Attorney Michaelson shall prepare 
and submit an Order electronically.

Matter set on CHAMBER'S CALENDAR 7/20/20 at 8:30 am to review the INSPECTION REPORT.

Jul 20, 2020   8:30AM Status Check
Chambers Marquis, Linda

INTERIM CONDITIONS:

FUTURE HEARINGS:

Page 4 of 4Printed Date: 5/28/2020

Notice: Journal Entries are prepared by the courtroom clerk and are not the official record of the Court.

May 20, 2020Minutes Date:

G-19-052263-A
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Marquis Aurbach Coffing
Geraldine Tomich, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 8369
James A. Beckstrom, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 14032
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Telephone: (702) 382-0711
Facsimile: (702) 382-5816
gtomich@maclaw.com
jbeckstrom@maclaw.com

Attorneys for Kimberly Jones,
Guardian of Kathleen June Jones

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

IN THE MATTER OF THE GUARDIANSHIP
OF THE PERSON AND ESTATE OF:

KATHLEEN JUNE JONES

An Adult Protected Person.

Case No.: G-19-052263-A
Dept. No.: B

NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER

Please take notice that an Order Granting and Denying Kimberly Jones, as Guardian of

the Protected Person’s Motion for Protective Order was filed on the 21st day of May, 2020, a

copy of which is attached hereto.

Dated this 21st day of May, 2020.

MARQUIS AURBACH COFFING

By /s/ James A. Beckstrom
Geraldine Tomich, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 8369
James A. Beckstrom, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 14032
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Attorneys for Kimberly Jones,
Guardian of Kathleen June Jones

Case Number: G-19-052263-A

Electronically Filed
5/21/2020 5:39 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that the foregoing NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER SHORTENING

TIME AND NOTICE OF HEARING was submitted electronically for filing and/or service

with the Eighth Judicial District Court on the 21st day of May, 2020. Electronic service of the

foregoing document shall be made in accordance with the E-Service List as follows:1

Ty E. Kehoe, Esq.
KEHOE & ASSOCIATES

871 Coronado Center Drive, Ste. 200
Henderson, NV 89052

Matthew C. Piccolo, Esq.
PICCOLO LAW OFFICES

2450 St. Rose Pkwy., Ste. 210
Henderson, NV 89074

Laura Deeter, Esq.
Nedda Ghandi, Esq.

725 S. 8th Street, Ste. 100
Las Vegas, NV 89101

Attorneys for Rodney Gerald Yeoman

Maria L. Parra-Sandoval, Esq.
LEGAL AID OF SOUTHERN NEVADA

725 E. Charleston Blvd.
Las Vegas, NV 89104

Attorneys for Protected Person

John P. Michaelson, Esq.
MICHAELSON & ASSOCIATES, LTD.

2200 Paseo Verde Parkway, Ste. 160
Henderson, NV 89052

Attorneys for Robyn Friedman and Donna Simmons

Jeffery R. Sylvester, Esq.
SYLVESTER & POLEDNAK

1731 Village Circle # 120
Las Vegas, NV 89134

Attorneys for Robyn Friedman and Donna Simmons

/s/ Cheryl Becnel
An employee of Marquis Aurbach Coffing

1 Pursuant to EDCR 8.05(a), each party who submits an E-Filed document through the E-Filing System
consents to electronic service in accordance with NRCP 5(b)(2)(D).
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Marquis Aurbach Coffing
Geraldine Tomich, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 8369
James A. Beckstrom, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 14032
10001 Park Run Dnve
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Telephone: (7 02) 382-07 I I
Facsimile: (702) 3 82-5 816
gtomich@maclaw.com
jbeckstrom@maclaw.com
Attorneys for Kimberly Jones

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Case No.:
Dept. No.:

G-19-052263-A
B

In the Matter of the Guardianship of Estate of:

KATHLEEN JI.JNE JONES,

This matter having come before this Court before the Honorable Linda Marquis for a

telephonic hearing on Plaintiff, Kimberly Jones, as Guardian of the Person and Estate of

Kathleen June Jones's (the "Guardian") Motion for Protective Order ("Motion") on the l5th day

of April, 2020, at 11:00 a.m. James A. Beckstrom, Esq. of the law firm of Marquis Aurbach

Coffing, appearing on behalf of Kimberly Jones, as Guardian of the Person and Estate of

Kathleen June Jones, Ty Kehoe, Esq., Matthew Piccolo, Esq., and Laura A. Deeter, Esq.

appearing on behalf of Rodney Gerald Yeoman ("Defendants"), Maria Parra-Sandoval, Esq.

appearing on behalfofthe Protected Person June Jones, John P. Michaelson, Esq. and Jeffrey R.

Sylvester, Esq. appearing on behalfofRobyn Friedman and Donna Simmons. The Court having

reviewed the papers and pleadings on file and heard oral arguments regarding the Motion, hereby

GRANTS the Motion in part and DENIES the Motion in part as follows:

Page I of5
MACil5820-001 5/21/2020 3:26 PM

Case Number: G-19-052263-A

Electronically Filed
5/21/2020 3:30 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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l. On September 23,2019, this Court entered its Order Granting Ex Parte Petition

for Temporary Guardianship wherein it appointed Robyn Friedman and Donna Simmons as

Temporary Guardians. On October 3, 2019, this Court extended the temporary guardianship.

2. On October 2, 2019, Rodney Gerald Yeoman filed his Opposition to Appointment

of Temporary Guardian and General Guardian and Counter-Petition for Appointment of

Temporary Guardian of the Person and Estate and Issuance of Letters of Temporary

Guardianship and Estate and Issuance of Letters of Temporary Guardianship and Counter-

Petition for Appointment ofGeneral Guardian ofthe Person and Estate and Issuance of Letters of

General Guardianship ("Yeoman's Counter-Petition").

3. On October 2,2019, Kimberly Jones filed her Opposition to Ex Parte Petition for

Appointment of Temporary and General Guardian of the Person and Estate; Altematively,

Counter-Petition for Appointment of Kimberly Jones as Temporary and General Guardian of the

Person and Estate ("Kimberly's Counter-Petition").

4. On October 15, 2019 at the Citation to Appear and Show Cause Hearing,

Kathleen June Jones, by and through her Court appointed Counsel, Maria L. Parra-Sandoval,

advised the Court that it was Kathleen June Jones'desire that Kimberly Jones be appointed as her

client's guardian.

5. On November 25,2019, the Court signed and an entry of order was made with the

following by the Court:

a. IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that Kimberly
Jones' Counter-Petition is hereby GRANTED.

b. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that Kimberly
Jones is hereby appointed as guardian of the Estate and Person of Kathleen
June Jones and Letters of General Guardianship shall issue to Kimberly Jones.

c. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that Rodney
Gerald Yeoman's Counter-Petition is hereby DENIED in its entirety.

d. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that a retum
hearing on the Investigative Reports is hereby scheduled for January 14,2020,
and if necessary, an evidentiary hearing on the Investigative reports is

scheduled for February 20, 2020.

Page 2 of 5
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6. Yeoman did not file a Notice of Appeal following the November 25, 2019 Order.

7. On December 10,2019, this Court heard oral argument on the Guardian's Petitton

for Retum of Property of Protected Person and Petition for Confirmation to Bring Civil Actions

on Behalf of Kathleen June Jones. An evidentiary hearing was set for February 20,2020.

8. On January 24,2020, counsel for Yeoman, Ty Kehoe, Esq. issued three Notices

of Deposition to the following persons: ( I ) Donna Simmons; (2) Robyn Friedman; and (3)

Kimberly Jones. The first deposition was stated to commence February 7,2020.

9. Ty Kehoe, Esq. also propounded requests for admissions, requests for production

of documents, and intenogatories to the following persons: ( I ) Donna Simmons; (2) Robyn

Friedman; and (3) Kimberly Jones.

10. On January 31, 2020, the Guardian of the protected person, counsel for the

protected person, and Yeoman entered into a stipulation that the two dogs subject to the Motion

for Retum of Property were the sole and separate property of the protected person.

I l. In the same stipulation and order, the parties agreed that the forthcoming February

20,2020 hearing on the Retum of Property was to be vacated, which was confirmed by this

Court.

12. Notwithstanding the fact

counsel for Mr. Kehoe refused to vacate

discovery.

no pending petition for relief was before the Court,

the above stated depositions and withdraw the written

13. On February 6,2020, Kimberly Jones as Guardian of the Protected Person filed a

Motion for Protective Order asking this Court to (l) quash the deposition notices and

propounded written discovery conceming Kimberly Jones, Robyn Friedman, and Donna

Simmons by issuing a protective order; and (2) award fees and costs to the Guardian of the

Protected Person pursuant to NRCP 37(a)(5).

14. On February 6,2020, Robyn Friedman and Donna Simmons filed a Joinder to the

Motion for Protective Order, with each party having filed a respective opposition and reply

thereto.

Page 3 of 5
MAC t5E20-001 5t2t/2020 3 26 PM

1678



ra
z
E

U ee
",9=1
-4 =P"d€-ax
cz EZ.tia-3_
<EJE(/)-q$

OBx
z

I

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

l0

ll
t2

l3

t4

l5

l6

l7

t8

I9

20

2t

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

15. "The court may, for good cause, issue an order to protect a party or person from

annoyance, embarrassment, oppression, or undue burden or expense . . ." NRCP 26(c)(1).

16. NRCP 26(c)(3) govems the award of fees to a party who prevails on moving for a

protective order and incorporates the provrsions ofNRCP 37(a)(5), which contains mandatory

fee shifting provisions for the prevailing party seeking a protective order.

The COURT FINDS the deposrtion notices and written discovery issued by Ty Kehoe,

Esq. on behalf of Gerald Yeoman to Kimberly Jones, Roblar Friedman, and Donna Simmons

were improper and needlessly increased the costs of these proceedings by forcing the Guardian

of the Protected Person to seek a protective order, when no issues justifying discovery remained

before this Court after the February 20, 2020 Retum ofProperty hearing was vacated.

The COURT FURTHER FINDS that for purposes of discovery in guardianship matters,

an individual is designated as a "party" when a petition or objection to a petition is currently

pending before the court or the person is serving as a guardian. Further, the guardianship

designation of "interested party" for purposes of service is separate and distinct from the

designation of "party" or "non-party" for purposes ofdiscovery. Accordingly, Petitioners Robyn

Friedman and Donna Simmons were parties to this litigation, for purposes of discovery, during

the time their Petition was pending until the Temporary Guardianship was terminated and

Kimberly Jones was appointed Guardian.

The COURT FURTHER FINDS that pursuant to NRCP 37(a)(5) and having considered

the factors stated in Brunzell v. Golden Gate Nat'l Bank, 85 Nev. 345, 349-50, 455 P.2d 3 l, 33

(1969), in conjunction with the pleadings, Memorandum of Points and Authorities in Support of

Attomey Fees and Costs submitted to this Court, the Guardian of the Protected Person's request

for fees and costs is GRANTED in the amount of $2,588.50, payable to Kimberly Jones, as
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Guardian of the Protected Person, jointly from Rodney Gerald Yeoman and Ty Kehoe,

Esq., within fifteen ( 15) days following Notice of Entry of this Order.

IT IS SO ORDERED.
\

Dated thisflday of May, 2020.
V_

Respectfully Submifted by:

,/
MARQU IS AURBACH C6FFING

10001 P6rk Run Drive
Las V/sas. Nevada 89145
Attor/neys for Kimberly Jones, as
Guordian of Kathleen June Jones

Page 5 of 5
MAC:15820-t)01 5/21/2020 3:26 PM

1680



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

Page 1 of 2
MAC:15820-001 4059020_1 5/29/2020 11:00 AM

M
A

R
Q

U
IS

A
U

R
B

A
C

H
C

O
F

F
IN

G
1

00
0

1
P

ar
k

R
un

D
ri

v
e

L
as

V
eg

as
,

N
ev

ad
a

89
14

5
(7

02
)

3
82

-0
71

1
F

A
X

:
(7

02
)

38
2

-5
8

16

Marquis Aurbach Coffing
Geraldine Tomich, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 8369
James A. Beckstrom, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 14032
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Telephone: (702) 382-0711
Facsimile: (702) 382-5816
gtomich@maclaw.com
jbeckstrom@maclaw.com

Attorneys for Kimberly Jones,
Guardian of Kathleen June Jones

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

IN THE MATTER OF THE GUARDIANSHIP
OF THE PERSON AND ESTATE OF:

KATHLEEN JUNE JONES

An Adult Protected Person.

Case No.: G-19-052263-A
Dept. No.: B

NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER

Please take notice that an Order Denying Rodney Gerald Yeoman’s Petition for Removal

of Guardian and for Return of Protected Person’s Property and Denying Kimberly Jones’s

Counter-Petition for Attorney Fees and Costs Pursuant to NRS 159.1853(4) was filed on the 28th

day of May, 2020, a copy of which is attached hereto.

Dated this 29th day of May, 2020.

MARQUIS AURBACH COFFING

By /s/ James A. Beckstrom
Geraldine Tomich, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 8369
James A. Beckstrom, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 14032
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Attorneys for Kimberly Jones,
Guardian of Kathleen June Jones

Case Number: G-19-052263-A

Electronically Filed
5/29/2020 11:13 AM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that the foregoing NOTICE OF ENTRY OF ORDER was submitted

electronically for filing and/or service with the Eighth Judicial District Court on the 29th day of

May, 2020. Electronic service of the foregoing document shall be made in accordance with the

E-Service List as follows:1

Ty E. Kehoe, Esq.
KEHOE & ASSOCIATES

871 Coronado Center Drive, Ste. 200
Henderson, NV 89052

Matthew C. Piccolo, Esq.
PICCOLO LAW OFFICES

2450 St. Rose Pkwy., Ste. 210
Henderson, NV 89074

Laura Deeter, Esq.
Nedda Ghandi, Esq.

725 S. 8th Street, Ste. 100
Las Vegas, NV 89101

Attorneys for Rodney Gerald Yeoman

Maria L. Parra-Sandoval, Esq.
LEGAL AID OF SOUTHERN NEVADA

725 E. Charleston Blvd.
Las Vegas, NV 89104

Attorneys for Protected Person

John P. Michaelson, Esq.
MICHAELSON & ASSOCIATES, LTD.

2200 Paseo Verde Parkway, Ste. 160
Henderson, NV 89052

Attorneys for Robyn Friedman and Donna Simmons

Jeffery R. Sylvester, Esq.
SYLVESTER & POLEDNAK

1731 Village Circle # 120
Las Vegas, NV 89134

Attorneys for Robyn Friedman and Donna Simmons

/s/ Cheryl Becnel
An employee of Marquis Aurbach Coffing

1 Pursuant to EDCR 8.05(a), each party who submits an E-Filed document through the E-Filing System
consents to electronic service in accordance with NRCP 5(b)(2)(D).
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Marquis Aurbach Coffing
Geraldine Tomich, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. E369
James A. Beckstrom, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 14032
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas, Nevada 891 45
Telephone: (7 02) 382-07 I 1

Facsimile: (702) 3 E2-5816
gtomich@maclaw.com
jbeckstrom@maclaw.com
A ttor neys.for Ki mber ly J one s

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

In the Matter of the Guardianship of Estate of:

KATHLEEN JUNE JONES,

Protected Person.

tr TEMPORARY GUARDIANSHIP
! Person

! Estate

tr Person and Estate

D SPECIAL GUARDIANSHIP
D Person

! Estate ! Summary Admin.

! Person and Estate

CaseNo.: G-19-052263-A
Dept. No.: B

Hearing Date: May 20,2020
Hearinq Time: 9:00 a.m.

X GENERAL GUARDIANSHIP
! Person

! Estate ! Summary Admin.

I Person and Estate

! NOTICES/SAFEGUARDS

tr Blocked Account Required

D Bond Required

This matter having come before this Court before the Honorable Linda Marquis for a

hearing on Rodney Gerald Yeoman's Petition for Removal of Guardian and for Return of

Protected Person's Property ("Petition for Removal") and Kimberly Jones's counter-petition for

Attomey Fees and costs Pursuant ro NRS 159.1853(4) ("counrer-petition") on the 20th day of

m. James A. Beckstrom, Esq. of the law firm ol Marquis Aurbach Coffing,

Dl.Frb f.ci&r

. lt ri oa prt.ornbo
E y 6Enioay) Dtr,nkrl
,u{tnant

trrr dr*fiy
trh c.C;arhiy
Uol..tG*r.rhOrdd,

tuLqrttl
andobhr ntf:
Eiq|radXLrtIhr
tr,udorat iaadrd

trcja. c.t.t
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Case Number: G-19-052263-A

Electronically Filed
5/28/2020 12:39 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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appearing on behalf of Kimberly Jones ("Kimberly"), as Cuardian of the Person and Estate of

Kathleen June Jones. Ty Kehoe, Esq., Matthew Piccolo, Esq., and Laura A. Deeter, Esq.

appearing on behalf of Rodney Gerald Yeoman (''Defendants"). Maria Parra-Sandoval, Esq.

appearing on behalf of the Protected Person June Jones (''June"), John P. Michaelson. Esq. and

Jeffrey R. Sylvester, Esq. appearing on behalf of Robyn Friedman and Donna Simmons. The

Court having reviewed the papers and pleadings on file and heard oral arguments regarding the

Petition, hereby DENIES the Petition for Removal and Counter-Petition as follows:

PROCEDURAL HISTORY AND FACTS

I . On October 2, 2019, Yeoman filed a Counter-Petition for Appointment of

Temporary Guardian of the Person and Estate and Issuance of Letters of Temporary

Guardianship and Estate and lssuance of Letters of Temporary Guardianship and Counter-

Petition for Appointment of Ceneral Guardian of the Person and Estate and Issuance of Letters

of Ceneral Guardianship, whereby Yeoman objected to the appointment of Kimberly Jones as

Guardian ofthe protected person ("Yeoman's October 2019 Counter-Petition").

2. On October 2. 2019, Kimberly filed her Opposition to Ex Parte Petition for

Appointment of Temporary and General Guardian of the Person and Estate; Altematively.

Counter-Petition for Appointment of Kimberly as Temporary and General Guardian of the

Person and Estate ("Kimberly's Counter-Petition").

3. On October 15, 2019 at the Citation to Appear and Show Cause Hearing, the

Protected Person, by and through her Court appointed Counsel, Maria L. Parra-Sandoval, Esq.,

advised the Court that it was the Protected Person's desire that Kimberly be appointed as the

Protected Person's guard ian.

4. On November 25. 2019. this Court having entertained oral argument and

reviewed the pending Petitions. granted Kimberly's Counter-Petition, thereby appointing

Kimberly as Guardian of the Estate and Person of the Protected Person and approving Letters of

General Guardianship to issue to Kimberly. Concurrently, the Court having reviewed all

arguments presented in Yeoman's October 2019 Counter-Petition, the Court denied Yeoman's

October 2019 Counter-Petition in its entirety.
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5. The November 25, 2019 Orders of this Court were not subject to an appeal by any

party or interested party-including Yeoman.

6. Since this Court's November 25,2019 Orders, Kimberly has served as Cuardian

of the Protected Person.

7. On April 14, 2020, Yeoman filed a Petition for Removal of Guardian and for

Return of Protected Person's Property ("April 2020 Petition"), alleging inter alia, that Kimberly

Jones should be removed as Guardian based on the withdrawal of $6.832.82 from the Protected

Person's account and was not meaningfully communicated with Yeoman.

8. Within Yeoman's April 2020 Petition, he also sought appointment as guardian of

the Protected Person and the estate of the Protected Person.

9. On Apri|27,2020, Kimberly filed an Opposition to Yeoman's April 2020 Petition

as well as a Counter-Petition for Attomey Fees and Costs.

10. On May 7,2020, Madta Parra-Sandoval, Esq., counsel for the Protected Person,

joined in Kimberly's Opposition to Yeoman's April 2020 Petition and Counter-Petition for

Attorney Fees and Costs.

I I. On May 15.2020, Robyn Friedman and Donna Simmons, through legal counsel

John Michelson, Esq., similarly joined Kimberly's Opposition to Yeoman's April 2020 Petition

and Counter-Petition fbr Attomey Fees and Costs.

12. Thereafter, Yeoman, through his counsel filed a reply in support of his April 2020

Petition.

FINDINGS OF FACT

13. The COURT FINDS that Yeoman's April 2020 Petition fails to set forth good

cause to remove Kimberly as Guardian of the Protected Person or the estate of the Protected

Person pursuant to NRS I 59.185.

14. The COURT FURTHER FINDS that Yeoman's April 2020 Petition fails to set

forth any facts to warrant further inquiry and expense of the panies as it pertains to removal of

Kimberly as Guardian or the person or estate of the Protected Person, retum of any property of

the Protected Person. or revisit appointment ofa new guardian.
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15. The COURT FURTHER FINDS the Protected Person's desire is to continue to

have Kimberly as the guardian of her person and estate and does not want Yeoman to serve as

her guardian of her person or estate. The Court finds the representations of the Protected

Person's attomey, Maria Parra-Sandoval, Esq. credible on this issue.

16. The COURT FURTHER FINDS that Yeoman's allegations of financial

wrongdoing and isolation ofthe Protected Person by Kimberly as alleged within his April 2020

Petition are unsupported and Yeoman's remaining arguments in support of removal of Kimberly

have already been considered and denied by this Court on November 25,2019.

17 . The COURT FURTHER FINDS that following a review of the Guardianship

Compliance Office Forensic Specialist's Report filed with this Court, nothing indicates

misappropriation offunds by Kimberly concerning the Protected Person's property, including the

transfers raised by Yeoman within his April 2020 Petition.

18. The COURT FURTHER FINDS that Kimberly is the preferred guardian of the

Protected Person and Yeoman has set forth no facts to suggest his appointment as guardian

would be in the best interest of the Protected Person and that Yeoman is not an appropriate

Guardian at this time, based on the Protected Person's pending adversarial civil lawsuit against

him and the Protected Person's desire for Kimberly to serve as her Guardian.

ORDER

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that Yeoman's April 2020
Petition is DENIED in its entiretv.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that Kimberly's Counter-
Petition for Attorney Fees and Costs is DENIED in its entirety.

IT IS SO ORDERED..'Rt'
Dared thiv( rlday of May. 2020.

DISTRICT COURT JUDGE" ^"' ^ii.il-ilfidurs-" 
.,\J
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Respectfully Submitted by:
MARQUIS AURBACH COFFING

Bv: /s/ James A. Beckslrom
Geraldine Tomich, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 8369
James A. Beckstrom, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 14032
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Attorneys for Kimberly Jones, as
Guordian of the Person and
Estate of Kathleen June Jones
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